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To be the leading provider of total customer solutions in 
the energy sector and its derivative businesses.
We will achieve this by:
•	 Being an integral part of our customers’ lives, delivering consistent customer 

experience through innovative products and services;
•	 Developing strategic partnerships in pursuit of growth and opportunity;
•	 Leveraging on refining assets to achieve competitive advantage;
•	 Fostering an entrepreneurial culture that encourages teamwork, innovation, and 

excellence;
•	 Caring for the community and the environment; 
•	 Conducting ourselves with professionalism, integrity, and fairness; and
•	 Promoting the best interest of all our stakeholders.

Our Vision and Mission

1



2

Going The Extra Mile
About Our Report

Petron Corporation
2013 Annual Report



While we are present in Malaysia, 
indicators will only cover our Philippine 
operations, which include our major 
facilities and several service stations. 
Most information in this report pertains 
to our operations from January 1 to 
December 31, 2013. 

The selection of indicators was based 
on discussion with stakeholders (e.g. 
employees, service station dealers, 
suppliers, etc.) with guidance from our 
External Review Committee (ERC).  

In developing the report, we continued 
to reference data from our facilities 
following globally-accepted Integrated 
Management Systems and the 
Environmental Management Standards. 
Greenhouse gas (GhG) calculations were 
based on emission factors provided by the 
United Nations Framework Convention 
on Climate Change (UNFCCC), and the 
emission factors for GhG emissions 
from power consumption were based on 
figures from the Clean Air Initiatives-Asia. 
Air pollutants were computed using the 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Emission Factors. Petron’s involvement in 
joint ventures, our subsidiaries, leasing 
facilities, and other entities does not 
affect the comparability of the data. 

This year’s Annual Report “Going the Extra Mile” integrates 
sustainability indicators, following the Global Reporting Initiative 
(GRI) G3 Guidelines with a B+ level application. We are reporting 
on 45 performance indicators under the GRI guidelines. Petron has 
been publishing a separate Sustainability Report since 2008.  

About our Report

The major risks that we managed this 
year were substantially the same as those 
in the previous year since there were no 
fundamental changes in the nature of our 
operations covered in this report.  Major 
risks are those identified as having a high 
probability of occurrence and negatively 
affecting Petron.  Our risk-assessment 
process, guided by the Precautionary 
Principle, allowed us to predict potential 
risks, giving us an opportunity to take 
preventive action steps. 

This report was reviewed by a panel of 
independent experts in related fields 
engaged by the University of Asia and 
the Pacific’s Center for Corporate Social 
Responsibility. The work of the ERC 
involved meetings with our technical 
working group, interviews with various 
stakeholders, and ocular visits to two 
storage facilities and two stations located 
in Metro Manila and Visayas. 

There were no significant changes from 
previous methods of data gathering. 
Furthermore, there were no changes 
in the company’s size, structure and 
ownership in 2013. 

Using the Global 
Reporting Initiative (GRI) 
Sustainability Reporting 
Framework

“GRI has pioneered and developed 
a comprehensive Sustainability 
Reporting Framework that is widely 
used around the world."

“Its Framework is a reporting system 
that provides metrics and methods 
for measuring and reporting 
sustainability-related impacts 
and performance. The Framework 
– which includes the Reporting 
Guidelines, Sector Guidance and 
other resources – enables greater 
organizational transparency and 
accountability. This can build 
stakeholders’ trust in organizations, 
and lead to many other benefits. 
Thousands of organizations, of 
all sizes and sectors, use GRI’s 
Framework to understand and 
communicate their sustainability 
performance.”

(Source:https://www.globalreporting.org/
information/about-gri/what-is-GRI/Pages/
default.aspx)
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Petron Corporation is the largest oil refining and marketing 
company in the Philippines. Supplying nearly 40% of the 
country’s oil requirements, our world-class products and quality 
services fuel the lives of millions of Filipinos. We are dedicated 
and passionate about our vision to be the leading provider of 
total customer solutions in the energy sector and its derivative 
businesses.

Petron operates an oil refinery in 
Limay, Bataan, with a rated capacity of 
180,000 barrels per day. Our Integrated 
Management System (IMS)-certified 
refinery processes crude oil into a full 
range of petroleum products including 
gasoline, diesel, liquefied petroleum 
gas (LPG), jet fuel, kerosene, fuel oil, 
and petrochemical feedstocks benzene, 
toluene, mixed xylene, and propylene.

From the refinery, Petron moves its 
products mainly by sea to over 30 
depots and terminals situated all over 
the country. Through this nationwide 
network, we supply fuel oil, diesel, and 
LPG to various industrial customers. 
Petron also supplies jet fuel to key 
airports for international and domestic 
carriers. 

Through its 2,200 service stations, Petron 
retails gasoline, diesel, and kerosene to 
motorists and the public transport sector. 

Our wide range of world-class fuels 
includes Petron Blaze 100 Euro 4, XCS, 
Xtra Advance, Super Xtra Gasoline, Turbo 
Diesel, and Diesel Max.  

We also sell our LPG brands Gasul 
and Fiesta to households through an 
extensive retail network and to industrial 
customers. 

We source our fuel additives from 
our blending facility at Subic Bay. This 
gives us the capability to formulate 
unique additives for Philippine driving 
conditions. 

We have a facility in Mariveles, 
Bataan, where the refinery’s propylene 
production is converted into higher-value 
polypropylene resin. 

We have partnered with major food and 
service locators to give our customers a 
one-stop full service experience. Petron 
continuously puts up additional service 
stations in strategic locations to make 
our fuels and services more accessible to 
consumers.

We are Petron
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In line with our efforts to increase our 
presence in the regional market, we 
export various products to Asia-Pacific 
countries.

In March 2012, we increased our regional 
presence when we acquired three 
companies in Malaysia comprising an 
integrated refining, distribution, and 
marketing business. Petron Malaysia 
includes the 88,000 barrel-per-day Port 
Dickson Refinery, 7 storage facilities, 
and a retail network of over 560 service 
stations.

In 2010, Petron became part of the 
San Miguel Corporation (SMC) group 
of companies, one of the largest and 
most diversified conglomerates in the 
Philippines, with major interests in food, 
beverages, packaging, power-generation, 
infrastructure, and aviation. 

Our Corporate Office is at the San Miguel 
Corporation - Head Office Complex in 
Mandaluyong City.  We have four main 
operating divisions: Refinery, National 
Sales, Supply, and Operations.  Other 
Petron units supporting the operating 
divisions include Marketing, Corporate 
Technical and Engineering Services Group, 
Business Planning and Development, 
Property Management and Insurance, 
among others. 

We work closely with the government, 
regulatory agencies, and relevant 
stakeholder groups to help develop 
initiatives aimed at enhancing the local 
energy sector as we pursue the twin 
goals of industry leadership and nation-
building. 

Our stakeholders include our employees, 
shareholders, consumers, government 
agencies and regulators, industry and 
business groups, communities, civil 
society, academe, suppliers and service 
providers, international organizations or 
donor agencies, and media. 

We regularly engage our stakeholders 
to continuously improve our economic, 
environmental, and social performance. 
We conduct research and materiality 
surveys for our consumers, employees, 
and dealers to assess their needs. Petron 
engages policy and decision-makers in 
government to provide solutions for 
industry issues that impact on consumers 
in particular and the country in general.  

Petron strictly complies with the 
policies of the Department of Energy, 
the Department of Trade and Industry, 
Securities and Exchange Commission, and 

the Philippine Stock Exchange. We adhere 
to international human rights principles 
and Philippine labor laws in conducting 
our business and maintain an open line 
with our stakeholders for concerns they 
may have.  We conduct our business 
responsibly and uphold inclusivity and 
non-discrimination.  We also hold our 
business partners to the same standard. 

Where Petron has a presence, we increase 
economic opportunities by tapping local 
businesses.  We are able to promote local 
employment, equitable livelihood, and 
infrastructure investments which not 
only contribute to Petron’s growth but 
our partners and communities as well. 
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We look back at 2013 with pride as we celebrated 80 years of 
serving the country.  We delivered robust results and reached 

major milestones amid a tough business environment marked by 
volatility, intense competition, and a succession of calamities. 

The benchmark Dubai crude averaged 
around $105/barrel in 2013, lower by 3% 
compared to the previous year’s average.  
However, there was still instability with 
monthly swings reaching as high as $5/
barrel. We minimized this risk through 
the prudent management of our crude 
and product inventories.    

We experienced more competition 
as more players expanded into our 
traditional markets such as Reseller and 
Industrial Trade.  With our programs 
already in place, we managed to sustain 
our leadership with nearly 37% of the 
total market – larger than two of our 
closest rivals combined and bigger than 
the collective share of new players.  In 
the highly-competitive and strategic 
Reseller Trade which makes up half of our 
business, we increased our sales volumes 
by over 3%. Volumes for industrial accounts 
likewise grew by 1% as we focused on 
stable and high-growth sectors.   

Going the Extra Mile
Message from the Chairman and the President

Going The Extra Mile
Message from the Chairman  
and the President

Petron Corporation
2013 Annual Report

Ramon S. Ang
Chairman and CEO

Lubin B. Nepomuceno
President
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While these external factors had an impact 
on our operations, we looked inward, 
leveraging on strengths of the Petron 
organization to meet these challenges head-
on and reach our business targets.  

2013 was an exceptional year as the 
country was hit with major disasters 
in Central and Southern Philippines. In 
September 2013, Zamboanga was put 
under siege by an armed conflict. The 
following month, the provinces of Bohol 
and Cebu were hit by a major earthquake. 
Still reeling from the damage, the Visayas 
region was hit by “Yolanda,” the strongest 
typhoon in recorded history, which made 
landfall in Samar and Leyte. 
 
Even as these tested the resolve of the 
nation to its very limits, it also showed 
the resiliency, tenacity, and determination 
of every Filipino to get back on his 
feet. Sharing the same spirit, Petron 
personnel went the extra mile and 
bravely stayed at their posts. And while 
other oil companies withdrew and closed 
operations altogether at the height of 
these disasters, Petron stood ready to 
serve when the dust settled, providing 
much-needed fuel supply during relief 
and recovery operations.   

Ramon S. Ang
Chairman and CEO

Lubin B. Nepomuceno
President
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ROBUST RESULTS
 
We ended the year with a consolidated 
income of P5.1 billion – an improvement 
from 2012’s P1.78 billion income – on 
the back of higher sales volumes for our 
Philippine and Malaysian operations. 
 
Sales volumes grew by 10% for the period 
reaching 81.5 million barrels from 74.3 
million barrels in 2012.  The increase 
can be mainly attributed to the full 
consolidation of Petron Malaysia in 2013 
versus nine months the previous year.  As 
a result, revenues grew by 9% to P463.6 

some of the most 
preferred brands in 
the market. 

billion in 2013 from P424.8 billion in 2012. 

Your company remained No. 1 in 
all key segments including Reseller, 
Industrial, and LPG trades. Petron’s 
lubricants and greases are also 

• Over 300 
rebranded stations 

in Malaysia

•  Still #1 in Retail Trade in 
the Philippines

• 1.3 million Petron Value Cards 
issued

•  Launched Petron Blaze 100 Euro 4  
nationwide

•  Celebrated 80 years of fueling success

• $2-Billion Refinery Masterplan  
Phase 2 (RMP-2) nears completion

• 21.7 million safe man-hours 
achieved in 2013 across all 

operations

• 2,800 service stations 
now present in the 

Philippines and 
Malaysia

2013 Highlights
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Even as we produced robust results, 
we are more excited to discuss major 
operational highlights that will unleash 
the full potential of our key assets namely 
our Petron Bataan Refinery (PBR) and our 
extensive retail network here and 
in Malaysia.  

DAWN OF A NEW AGE 
2013 saw the near completion of our 
$2-billion Refinery Master Plan Phase 2 
(RMP-2) – our most ambitious project and 
the single largest investment by a Filipino 
corporation. RMP-2 underscores Petron’s 
commitment, as the only Filipino-owned 

oil major to heavily invest in the country’s 
future and be a staunch partner in 
nation-building.  We are on track to finish 
the construction of this “game-changing” 
project by the middle of 2014 and we 
expect to have it fully commissioned by 
early 2015.

RMP-2 ensures the Philippines’ energy 
security through the local production 
of environment-friendly fuels that 
meet stringent global standards. With 
the country’s economy growing at an 
unprecedented pace – 7.2% GDP growth 
in 2013 – it made good business sense to 
invest in our own capabilities and meet 
this growing demand.

The project significantly increases our 
production of “white” products – gasoline, 
jet fuel, diesel, LPG, and petrochemical 
feedstocks. This is done through the 
conversion of low-value fuel oil, thereby 
improving our refining margins.  

It also gives us the flexibility to process 
heavier and more sour crude oil types 
which are cheaper and widely available, 
further enhancing the country's supply 
security especially during times of crisis.  

Once completed, Petron is poised to be 
the only oil company capable of locally 
producing Euro 4 fuels in the country, well 
ahead of the government mandate to 
adopt this quality standard by 2016.  

RMP-2 is a source of national pride since 
it highlights the ingenuity and talent 
of homegrown Filipino engineers.  This 
investment sends a strong signal to both 
local and international companies that it 
is high time to invest in the Philippines.  
Once operational, RMP-2 will make the 
Petron Bataan Refinery one of the most 
advanced and complex refineries in 
the region. 

CONVENIENCE AND 
SERVICE REDEFINED 
A strong retail network combined with 
the trusted Petron brand proved to be a 
plus in strengthening our presence in a 
highly-competitive market.  

We are proud to note that we have 
breached the 2,200 service station count 
in the Philippines – the most extensive 
in the market representing 35% of total 
industry.  

We were able to construct 200 additional 
stations with the aim of bringing our 
premium fuels and services closer to 
every Filipino.  We concentrated our retail 
expansion program in rural areas where 
demand is growing. These new builds will 
serve as additional outlets with increased 
fuel production coming from RMP-2.

We also introduced revolutionary 
products for motorists who crave better 
engine performance. We launched Petron 
Blaze 100 Euro 4 – the first premium 
plus gasoline in the country that meets 
European specifications.   Petron Super 
Xtra (RON 91) – a reasonably-priced but 
efficient fuel – was also added to our 
product line.  These new products were 
well-received by the motoring public. 
Petron now has the widest range of 
product offerings in the market to fit 
any lifestyle.   

To show our gratitude to loyal customers, 
we partnered with more merchants such 
as Philippine Airlines for the Petron Value 
Card (PVC), a lifestyle card that gives 
users privileges and discounts, motoring 
assistance, and exclusive promos. To date, 
we have issued 1.3 million PVCs even if 
we only launched this product two 
years ago.  

Similar to our Philippine operations, 
we also enhanced our retail network 
in Malaysia. We continued with our 
rebranding program and transformed 
about 300 out of the 560 service stations 
to the Petron brand.  We also pursued an 
expansion program, opening several new 
stations as we shifted our focus from 
business consolidation to growth. These 
programs help Petron Malasia's retail 
volume to grow by 5% in 2013.  
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THE PETRON WAY 
We continued to conduct our business 
sustainably.  Getting it done in the 
right way, the Petron way, is key to our 
continued success. 

In 2013, a total of 24 of our 32 depots 
and terminals were certified under 
the globally-recognized Integrated 
Management System (IMS).  This means 
that our facilities comply or even exceed 
international standards in the areas 
of process quality, workplace safety, 
and environmental management. 
PBR, meanwhile, is the pioneering 
refinery in the country with an IMS.  Our 
commitment to safety led to 21.7-million 
safe man-hours – a record-breaking 
milestone affirmed by the Department 
of Labor and Employment (DOLE) when 
it conferred to us the Safety Milestone 
(SMile) during the year.  

We also marked an industry first as 
we certified 20 Petron service stations 
compliant to the Environmental 
Management System (ISO-14001).  This 
allows us to continuously monitor and 
improve the environmental performance 
of our service stations.  We are the only 
oil company adopting this standard and 
we will pursue EMS certification in other 
service stations over the next few years.  

Having sustainable operations means more 
operational efficiencies, directly impacting 
on our bottom line, and more importantly, 
results in better service and greater 
customer satisfaction.  

At Petron, this concept goes beyond the 
four corners of our facilities. Sustainability 
means ensuring that our stakeholders 
– employees, business partners, 
customers, and communities – share in 
our success.  Our success means more 
opportunities for education, livelihood, 
and employment. 

For school year 2013-2014, we celebrated 
the graduation of over 900 Tulong Aral 
ng Petron scholars. Now on its 12th year, 
Tulong Aral has sent over 8,600 children 
to school.  To make the program more 
relevant, we shifted our priorities from 
grade school to high school and college 
levels. Like proud parents, we eagerly 
anticipate the graduation of our top 
college scholars, who have been with us 
since the program started, as they take 
the next step and join the Petron family. 

Complementing this initiative is our 
Petron School building program. In 
2013, we built the 80th Petron School 
in Compostela Valley, a province hit by 
Typhoon Pablo.  

These sustainability efforts are aligned to 
high standards of corporate governance 
in conducting our business activities. 
Further, these initiatives are geared 
towards promoting best practices that 
solidify the Petron brand.  In turn, these 
help create more opportunities in the 
areas of governance and ethics, employee 
relations, customer care, supply chain 
management, and risk management. 

GOING THE 
EXTRA MILE 
	
The theme for this report is fitting 
given all the “extras” we had to do as an 
organization to overcome the challenges 
of 2013 and come out successful. This 
document is our first Annual Report – 
fully incorporating our sustainability 
indicators, which used to be published 
separately. After all, we are among a 
handful of Filipino companies that have 
integrated sustainability in every aspect 
of their business.  More importantly, this 
drives us to be even more responsible, 
accountable, and transparent as we 
continue to grow our business.

Our sustainability agenda serves as 
a platform for growth, enabling us 
to provide long-term value for all our 
stakeholders. The multi-stakeholder 
view of our business that sustainability 
provides pushes us to continuously 
improve our economic, social, and 
environmental performance in the 
markets where we are present. 

Looking to the future, we are very excited 
about the company’s prospects as we 
begin to reap the benefits of projects 
that were started only a few years 
ago.  RMP-2 will soon be producing 
more world-class fuels, giving Petron a 
unique advantage from production to 
distribution to marketing.  It will also 
lessen the country’s dependence on 
imported and more expensive finished 
fuel products. On the retail side, we have 
hundreds of service stations undergoing 
various stages of construction ready to 
serve more Filipinos and Malaysians.  
Indeed, your company is undergoing a 
transformational change, ready to take 
the next big step.  

As we continue on our journey, we trust 
that you, our stakeholders, will stand 
shoulder to shoulder with us as we march 
towards a stronger Petron, a stronger nation.

Going The Extra Mile
Message from the Chairman  
and the President

Petron Corporation
2013 Annual Report
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Economic Report Card

Revenues	 463.6 Billion

Net Income	 5.1 Billion

Social Investment	 143.3 Million

Ramon S. Ang
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Lubin B. Nepomuceno
President
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Operational Highlights
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80 Years of Fueling Success

We also maintained our lead in terms 
of fuels technology with the launch 
of Petron Blaze 100 Euro 4, the first 
premium plus gasoline in the country 
that meets the globally-accepted fuel 
quality standards for Euro-4 technology 
vehicles.  It also exceeds the Euro-4 PH 
fuel specifications in the Philippine 
National Standards specifically the 
sulfur and benzene content. Petron is 
two years ahead of the government 
mandate to comply with this standard.  
With its naturally, high octane base fuel 
and advanced additive technology, this 
revolutionary fuel will truly unleash the 
potential of high-performance gasoline-
fed vehicles.

We also developed Petron Super Xtra 
Gasoline and Petron Xtra Advance in 
compliance with the new Philippine 
National Standards for ethanol-blended 
gasoline.  The two new grades of gasoline 
meet the new specifications set by the 
Department of Energy.  These products 
are formulated to give enhanced 
performance in terms of engine 
cleanliness, combustion efficiency, and 
corrosion control.

Petron maintained its industry leadership 
during the year with an overall market 
share of nearly 37%. 

In the highly-competitive Reseller Trade, 
our outlet share was 35%, the highest in 
the industry, largely due to our network 
expansion program. We ended the year 
with almost 2,200 stations, with around 
1,000 stations built over the last five years. 

We also continued with the upgrade 
of our existing stations to further 
ensure safety within our facilities and 
surrounding communities. 

We also improved on our forecourt 
operations with the roll-out of our 
Point-of-Sale System (POS) in additional 
service stations nationwide. More than 
700 stations now have the POS resulting 
in faster service turnaround and a better 
customer experience.

2013 was another banner year for Petron as we celebrated 80 
years of fueling the nation. This major milestone was highlighted 
by continued market leadership through continuous investments, 
product innovations, operational efficiency, and strict adherence 
to the best industry practices.  These ensure the company’s 
success in the future. 
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Our industry leadership is also anchored on 
our ability to reliably serve our customers 
especially in times of need. In October, 
our dedicated personnel braved strong 
aftershocks of a magnitude 7.2 earthquake 
in Bohol Province to set up make-shift 
stations to ensure fuel supply in some 
isolated areas. In the aftermath of Yolanda, 
our personnel also put up temporary 
fueling facilities in Palo and Tacloban to 
immediately serve the requirements of the 
community and the government.
 

We became an industry pioneer with 
20 of our stations compliant with the 
globally-recognized Environmental 
Management System (EMS or 1SO-
14001). To date, we are the only oil 
company in the country that has EMS-
certified stations, and we are working 
to have more stations comply with this 
standard. We now have more than 500 
Pollution Control Officers trained and 
deployed at our service stations.  We 
expect this number to grow. 

1.3 Million 
Petron Value 
Cards issued

Meanwhile, our Card Business Group enabled us to lock in our 
loyal customers and convert non-Petron users to our brand. By 
the end of 2013, the number of Petron Value Cards (PVC) issued 
reached 1.3 million, more than a 200% increase from last year’s 
count.  This means that one out of seven customers used the 
PVC.  Next year, we aim to reach two million cardholders, as we 
improve on PVC’s rewards and benefits and increase the number 
of stations that accept the card from around 1,000 this year to 
1,400 in 2014.

PVC is a one-of-a-kind rewards program 
that allows users to earn points each 
time they gas up. Aside from privileges 
from partner merchants, free towing 
and roadside assistance, cardholders get 
discounts when they purchase Petron 
Gasul, Petron lubricants, and San Miguel 
products available at service stations. 
Other added features include reloading of 
points via the Bank of Philippine Islands 
and conversion of points to PAL Mabuhay 
Miles.
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2013 was also a banner year for our 
long-running National Student Art 
Competition Vision Petron, which 
continued to earn recognition from 
renowned award-giving bodies. The 
program was given prestigious awards by 
the International Association of Business 
Communicators (IABC) during the 12th 

Philippine Quill Awards.  Its related 
collaterals were also conferred the Anvil 
Hall of Fame and Excellence awards 
by the Public Relations Society of the 
Philippines (PRSP). 

Lakbay Alalay®, the country’s pioneering 
and longest-running roadside assistance 
program, continued to evolve by 
promoting social responsibility and care 
for the environment through a tree-
planting program with the Department of 
Environment and Natural Resources.

Industrial 
Trade

Other major contributors to this year’s retail growth were 
successful promos, such as the Petron Toy Ride Rush Special 
Edition, which we launched in time for our 80th year celebration 
in September and the Grab a Porsche promo which ran from 
November 2013 to February 2014.

We also made headway in our Industrial 
Trade with the addition of new accounts 
that pushed our sales volume to 20.5 
million barrels.  This is the highest sales 
volume we achieved since 2010. We also 
maintained leadership in the strategic 
aviation sector, capturing over 50% of 
the market. 

20.5 million 
barrels
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ChoiceBrand of 

In the LPG sector, 
Petron Gasul and 

Fiesta Gas remained 
the brands of choice 

by millions of Filipino 
households. We 
maintained our 

industry lead with 
a market share of 

34.4%, largely due to 
our retail expansion. 

By year end, we 
had nearly 7,000 

branch stores and 
exclusive retail outlets 
combined, 13% higher 

than in 2012. 

Meanwhile, Lube Trade continued to 
be a challenging business due to tough 
competition.  We, however, closed 
the year capturing 35.2% of the total 
business, driven by the launch of a 
number of lubes and specialty products 
and the establishment of seven new 
Petron Car Care Centers. We see growth 
opportunities in the years ahead for this 
sector as we leverage on the strength of 
our extensive market presence. 

Our Research and Development team 
consistently introduces revolutionary 
products that meet and exceed the 
highest quality standards.  We maintain 
an open line with our customers to 
continuously align our brand with 
their expectations and those of the 
market. We remain fully compliant with 
all regulations and voluntary codes 
concerning marketing initiatives. 

In 2013, Petron Super Xtra Gasoline, 
pChem 6000DP, and Stemol 300, along 
with three other existing products were 
assessed, making them fully-compliant 
with regulations and voluntary codes 
concerning their health and safety 
impacts during their life cycle. 
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ChoiceBrand of We also fully updated the Safety Data 
Sheet (SDS) of our fuels and lubricants 
to the Globally Harmonized System 
(GHS) format.  The SDS in GHS format 
has 16 sections which include hazards 
identification, chemical composition, fire-
fighting measures, handling and storage 
procedures, ecological information, 
among others. All our products likewise 
have Product Data Sheets (PDS). 

We are a member of the Philippine 
Association of National Advertisers 
(PANA). As such, all our advertising 
materials are cleared with the Ad 
Standards Council (ASC) prior to media 
implementation.  The ASC is guided by 
Philippine laws and the ASC Code of 
Ethics. All our promotions are likewise 
cleared by the Department of Trade and 
Industry. 

We conducted several market research 
studies, such as Brand Health Tracking 
(BHT) to identify strengths and 
improvement areas for customer 
satisfaction.  Over 2,000 consumers were 
interviewed in 2013, results of which were 
thoroughly analyzed. The Petron Customer 
Interaction Center (PCIC), our major touch 
point with customers, received generally 
positive feedback on our company, 
particularly our products Petron Blaze 100 
Euro 4 and Turbo Diesel.

In 2013, there were no complaints of 
breaches in privacy against the company. 
We were also not subjected to any 
monetary fines, non-compliance with 
laws and regulations concerning the 
provision and use of products 
and services.

Looking at the next 80 years, we remain 
committed to improving our product line 
and services to meet the ever-changing 
and unique needs of Filipino consumers.  
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Petron Malaysia marked 2013 with several 
milestones that strengthened its foothold 
in a highly-regulated and competitive 
market. During the year, Petron Malaysia 
successfully completed the upgrading and 
rebranding of nearly 300 stations. 
We established 10 new stations as part of our retail network expansion program with 
more coming on-stream in 2014.  This is part of our efforts to bring our premium fuels 
(Blaze 97RON, Blaze 95RON, and DieselMax) and personalized services closer
 to motorists. 

CELEBRATING MILESTONES IN MALAYSIA
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On top of these initiatives, Petron 
Malaysia rolled-out value-adding 
products that further enhanced 
customers’ experience at our service 
stations. We introduced the Petron Miles 
Privilege Card, which replaced the Smiles 
Loyalty Card.  This card rewards loyal 
customers not only with points but also 
with discounts and other privileges from 
merchant partners.  There are currently 
around 1.5 million Smiles loyalty card 
users that are slowly migrating to the 
Miles Card.

We also partnered with the Royal 
Malaysia Police to transform strategically- 
located Petron service stations into 
temporary shelters for the public in case 
of an emergency that requires police 
assistance. 19
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At the Port Dickson Refinery (PDR), we 
completed the design specifications 
for a planned Diesel Hydrotreater Unit 
which will enable it to produce Euro-
4M standard fuels as mandated by the 
government. 
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Similarly, improvements at the Klang Valley Depot Terminal 
were initiated for better distribution and cost efficiencies. Once 
completed, products from the terminal will be transported to a 
demand center via a pipeline instead of tank trucks. A new tank 
was also added at the Pasir Gudang Terminal for a more reliable 
fuel distribution in southern Malaysia which includes the states 
of Johor and Malacca.

Our facilities there continued to strictly 
adhere to international standards on 
safety and security. PDR clocked in 8.5 
million safe man-hours for 11 years 
without Lost Time Injury. PDR, along with 
our other terminals were also recognized 
by Malaysian Society for Occupational 
Safety & Health (MSOSH) for their 
excellent safety performance. PDR won 
the Gold Merit Award, while Bagan Luar, 
KL International Airport and Port Dickson 
terminals, each received a Gold Class 1 
recognition. 

In the years ahead, Petron Malaysia will 
continue with value-adding initiatives to 
increase market share, enhance customer 
convenience, increase sales volumes, and 
improve margins. 
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GEARING UP FOR 
THE FUTURE
2013 was made more exciting with 
the near completion of the expansion 
program of the Petron Bataan Refinery 
(PBR). RMP-2 is a $2-billion investment 
that will transform the refinery into one 
of the most advanced facilities in the 
region, achieving world-class processing 
and energy efficiency, and operational 
availability. 

RMP-2 also allows the local production of 
Euro-4-compliant fuel products. RMP-2 
will be in full commercial operation 
in 2015. 

Another major project at the Refinery 
was the Flare Gas Recovery Unit (FGRU) 
which was completed in December. This 
installation recovers the flare gas for use 
as fuel, allowing us to reduce our carbon 
footprint. 

In the midst of the full swing 
construction of this flagship project, PBR 
sustained its Integrated Management 
System (IMS) Certification for the fifth 
consecutive year, which underscored its 
adherence to international standards in 
the areas of quality, environment, health, 
and safety. PBR is the pioneering refinery 
in the Philippines adhering to this global 
certification on ISO-9001, ISO-14001, and 
OHSAS-18001 standards. 

Crude run at our refinery decreased by 
more than 19% percent in 2013 due 
to scheduled maintenance activities 
and to lessen production of low-
value products. This lowered our total 
energy consumption by nearly 23% 
percent versus 2012. Our direct energy 
consumption, which accounts for 96% of 
the company’s total energy consumption, 
decreased by more than 23%, due to 
lower crude run and improvements 
implemented at PBR.  

More than 80% of the indirect energy 
used by our refinery was from the RSFBB.  
This new facility generates steam and 
power for our Bataan refinery. Our shift of 
power source to the more efficient RSFFB 
translated to 63,532.68 gigajoules (GJ) 
of energy reduction. Together with other 
operational improvements, we generated 
total energy savings of 1,884,263.9 GJ, 
11% higher than the previous year.  
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RMP-2 is a game-changing initiative that allows the full 
utilization of the PBR’s 180,000 barrels-per-day capacity, 

therefore enhancing the country’s supply security. It consists 
of 19 new process units, which include the Fluidized-bed 

Catalytic Cracking Unit (FCCU) and the Delayed Coker Unit 
(DCU). FCCU and DCU are RMP-2’s most important and 

complex units. They will convert low-value fuel oil to high-
value white products such as LPG, gasoline, jet fuel, and diesel. 

The DCU will also have a by-product called petcoke, which, 
because of its high heating value, makes it a good fuel for the 

newly-operational Refinery Solid Fuel-Fired Boiler (RSFFB). 
RSFFB, in turn generates steam and power for the refinery. 
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Operations
	 34,396 
	 7%

Service Stations
	 13,189
	 3%

Head Office
	 8,984
	 2%

PBR
	 413,656
	 88%

2013 Indirect Energy Consumption
In Gigajoules (GJ)

2013 Direct Energy 
Consumption (GJ)

� PBR
	 15.851.49
	 100%

� Operations
	 2.790
	 0%

Annual Energy 
Consumption  
(In Million GJ)
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2011 2012 2013

Direct 16,488,664 15,854,285 12,174,232

Indirect 488,187 466,015 470,224
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In 2013, our direct GhG emissions 
decreased by 7.5% while indirect GhG 
emissions increased by 7.55%.  We will 
continue to implement programs to 
minimize our indirect GhG emissions.  
 
Beyond these various expansion 
initiatives, PBR continued with its 
Corporate Social Responsibility projects 
which include the Petron Clinic and 
the Petron Scholarship Grant. The 
Petron Clinic was able to serve 2,412 
beneficiaries from nearby communities 
since it opened in June 2013. The Petron 
Scholarship Grant Program, to date, has 
139 beneficiaries from top engineering 
universities in the country. Through 

GHG Emission by Source  
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this, the refinery is able to employ top-
caliber engineers to meet the manpower 
requirement of RMP-2. 

Meanwhile, our polypropylene (PP) 
facility also geared up for RMP-2. We 
commissioned an onsite nitrogen plant 
and started upgrading critical equipment 
such as our catalyst feeding system, 
which helped reduce production costs. 
Our notable achievements during the 
year include the development of PP 
in powder form which can provide 
better savings to our customers; the 
introduction of our products to the export 
market and the continuous development 
of various PP grades tailor-fit to our 
customer’s unique requirements. This 
2014, we will continue our thrust to 
lead the market by strengthening the 
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production capability of our facility 
through optimization of operational 
efficiency, processes and equipment, 
as well as to enhance customer value 
through technical support services.

Environmental sustainability is a critical 
aspect of our business, and we seek 
to strike a balance between meeting 
the demands of our stakeholders, 
and exercising our stewardship and 
responsibility at all levels of our business.

While the responsibility for 
environmental management is shared 
across the business, an Environment 

Environmental Expenditures
(In Million Pesos)

Council (comprised of representatives 
from the different business units and 
led by the Corporate Technical and 
Engineering Services Group-Environment) 
continued to assist us in the formulation 
and implementation of environmental 
policies.  The Council is responsible 
for dissemination of new regulations, 
standards, and corporate policies 
throughout the organization, and to 
share best practices in environmental 
management. 

Business Case for 
Environmental Sustainability
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RELIABILITY IN TIMES 
OF NEED

The dependability of our supply chain 
network was put to the test with a series 
of natural calamities and a rebellion 
in Zamboanga City. As establishments 
remained shuttered due to armed 
threats in Zamboanga, our Depot 
personnel manned their posts to ensure 
an uninterrupted supply of fuel in the 
province.

Meanwhile, our facilities’ readiness to 
respond to emergencies helped avert loss 
of life and damage to property. Our Bacolod 
Depot helped extinguish a residential fire 
while the Navotas and Iligan Depots each 
dispatched oil spill response teams in 
response to distress calls.

To further build-up and strengthen 
our capability, we continued with our 
Logistics Master Plan (LMP) – a program 
that further integrates our logistics 
supply chain with the aim of providing 
our customers' fuel needs in the 
fastest, safest, and most cost-effective 
means.  LMP also supports the increased 
requirements and operational tempo 
once RMP-2 is commissioned. In 2013, 
we completed the construction of new 
storage facilities in the Joint Oil Company 
Aviation Storage Plant (JOCASP) and 
Navotas Depot to shore up our ability to 
serve increasing Jet A-1 requirements. We 
also continued to prepare and implement 
the work necessary to upgrade and 
expand several of our facilities to ensure a 
reliable supply in Metro Manila.

We are guided by our Occupational Health 
and Safety Policy that promotes the strictest 
safety practices. In 2013, 24 of our 32 depots 
and terminals received the Integrated 
Management System (IMS) certification. 
All our facilities also maintained their 
compliance to the International Ship and 
Port Security  (ISPS) Code. 
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In November, Petron was the only oil company that served Leyte 
after typhoon Yolanda. Our Operations Group conducted clearing 

operations together with the local government to continuously 
deliver fuel to the provinces of Leyte, Samar, Eastern Samar, and 

Western Samar.  Our personnel quickly set up an into-plane 
refueling facility at the Tacloban Airport to adequately serve the 
aviation fuel requirements of the Philippine Air Force and other 

aircraft. This allowed the government, international, and non-
government organizations to immediately conduct relief efforts 

and send much needed aid to our countrymen. Reliable
30



Two major projects aimed at improving 
our delivery to customers continued– 
the Inventory-Driven Delivery System 
(IDDS) and the Global Position System 
(GPS). Eighty percent of our accounts and 
service stations have been enrolled in the 
IDDS from only 18% in 2012. IDDS is a 
program that ensures the stable supply 
of petroleum products at our service 
stations.  This resulted in an optimum 
utilization of our tank trucks.  Meanwhile, 
88% of our contracted tank truck fleet 
is already equipped with GPS tracking 
system which allows us to monitor our 
deliveries in real time.

These initiatives and our continuous Tank 
Truck Modernization Program enabled us 
to improve the safety, product integrity, 
and delivery reliability of our operations. 
These also ensured that our dealers have 
sufficient supply at all times, ultimately 
benefiting customers. 

2013 Incidents
January-June 

Petron
January-June 

Contractor
July-December 

Petron
July-December 

Contractor Jan-Dec Petron
Jan-Dec 

Contractor

A. Plant & Personnel-Related Incidents

Minor Injury 1 3 1 1 2 4

Disabling Injury 0 0 0 0 0 0

Restricted Duty 0 0 0 0 0 0

Death 0 0 0 0 0 0

Vehicular Accident 4 4 0 0 4 4

B. Fire-Related Incidents

Flash Fire 0 0 0 0 0 0

Fire, Minor 2 1 0 1 2 2

Fire, Major 0 1 0 1 0 2

C. Oil Spills

Oil Spill (Inland) 0 14 0 17 0 31

Oil Spill (Offshore) 0 2 0 7 0 9

D. Threats

Personnel 0 0 0 1 0 1

Facility 0 0 0 0 0 0

E. Tank Truck-Related Incidents

Accidents 0 10 0 11 0 21

Spills 0 4 0 0 0 4

Pilferage 0 3 0 2 0 5

Hijacking 0 2 0 0 0 2

Contamination 0 5 0 6 0 11

Minor Fire 0 4 0 1 0 5

F. Property Damage

Property Damage 1 5 0 8 1 13

Complementing these programs, we prioritized on how we 
can help preserve our environment. Nine of our facilities in 
Luzon, Visayas, and Mindanao adopted rivers and other bodies 
of water as part of the Adopt-An-Estero/Water Program of the 
Department of Environment and Natural Resources. This joint 
initiative also involved a National Greening Program which 
gathered nearly 8,000 Petron employees and other volunteers 
across the country to plant 60,000 tree seedlings and mangrove 
propagules. 
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PEOPLE-DRIVEN SUCCESS

Petron’s workforce was key in maintaining the company’s 
market leadership amid a challenging economic environment 
and an organization-wide cost optimization program. With 
dedicated and hard working employees, our company was able 
to do more with less. 

Employees by Age-
Senior Management

Employees by Age-
Rank and File

Employees by 
Age-Middle Management

Employees by Gender

2013 2012 2011

60-65 4 4 3

50-59 97 91 84

40-49 73 68 58

30-39 20 16 7

20-29 0 1 1

2013 2012 2011

60-65 0 0 0

50-59 89 91 81

40-49 99 115 139

30-39 111 96 73

20-29 495 406 175

2013 2012 2011

60-65 0 1 1

50-59 115 108 112

40-49 140 150 139

30-39 319 277 259

20-29 573 527 372

2013 2012 2011

Female 457 427 357

Male 1,678 1,524 1,147
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Average Hours of Training Per Year Per Employee

2013 2012 2011

Average hours of training per 
year per employee 

33 80.12 86

Total training hours for all Petron 
employees

69,996 156,323 128,994

Total workforce represented in formal joint management-worker health  
and safety (HSE) committees

2013 2012 2011

Petron Bataan Refinery 54 48 55

Depot and Plant Operations 128 187 160

Head  Office 15 17 12

Number of Petron employees 2,135 1,951 1,483

Percentage 11%* 13% 15%

* The decline is brought about by increase in number of employees at the Refinery, CTESG, and Depot Operations.

Recognizing their importance to our 
operations, we continued to invest 
in programs to further enhance their 
skills. Through our Human Resources 
Department, we offered more than 700 
programs and technical trainings for our 
employees. Educational Reimbursement 
Program was also offered to employees 
who want to further their education.

Formal training was reduced and replaced 
by more cost-efficient and alternative 
online learning facilities on topics such 
as personal effectiveness, grammar 
essentials, lateral thinking and leadership, 
among others.

We continued to prioritize harmonious 
relations with our employees while 
providing a healthy and safe work 
environment.  To manage the health 
and safety of our employees, their 
families, and members of our fenceline 
communities, we put in place initiatives 
that would prevent serious illnesses 
and infectious diseases. These programs 
included immunization, health 

examinations, medical advisories, health 
education, and stress debriefing. As such, 
risks of work-related diseases or injuries 
were reduced. 

To promote and protect the welfare of 
our employees, we forged Collective 
Bargaining Agreements (CBA) with labor 
unions in the company. These CBAs 
include provisions on family planning, 
dangerous drugs, safety clothing and 
equipment, and medical benefits. While 
many of our employees are deployed 
nationwide, this did not hinder them 
from exercising their rights to freedom of 
association and collective bargaining.

Our employees strictly adhere to our 
Code of Conduct and Ethical Business 
which contains our corporate values of 
professionalism, integrity, and fairness. 
Thus, none of our business units were 
assessed for risk related to incidence 
of corruption or discrimination in the 
workplace. At the same time, we have 
an internal control system in place to 
manage people risks, including potential 
breach of confidence. 
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Workforce Profile by Geographic Distribution

49 Pasig

3 PASACAO, Camarines Sur

10  Navotas

6  JOCASP-NAIA

2 LEGAZPI CITY, Albay

1 CALAPAN CITY, Oriental Mindoro

MANILA

LIMAY, Bataan

CEBU

LEYTE

 4  APPARI, Cagayan

11 ROSARIO,Cavite

17 BACOLOD, Negros Occidental

187Pandacan

529 SMC-HOC 

12 ZAMBOANGA CITY, Zamboanga

6 ILIGAN CITY, Lanao Del Norte

11 BAWING, General Santos City

24 DAVAO CITY, Davao

23 TAGOLOAN, Misamis Oriental

6 NASIPIT, Agusan del Norte

3 TAGBILARAN CITY, Bohol

4 Mactan

64 Mandaue

9 Tacloban

1 Isabel

9 Ormoc

7JIMENEZ, Misamis Occidental

3 AMLAN, Negros Oriental

5 PUERTO PRINCESA CITY, Palawan

1 SAN JOSE, Occidental Mindoro

15 MABINI, Batangas

1,059 PBR

17 Limay Terminal

7SAN FERNANDO, Pampanga

9 PORO, San Fernando, La Union

14 ILOILO CITY, Iloilo

7 ROXAS CITY, Capiz
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We are fully compliant with provisions 
of the Labor Code. In 2013, 100% of our 
employees received performance reviews.  
Our entry level wage was also 1.95 times 
higher than what is mandated by the 
law. Our salary structure is not based on 
gender but on positions classified by job 
complexity, degree of responsibility, and 
accountability. 

We do not employ forced, compulsory, 
or child labor in any of our full-time, 
contractual, or sub-contracted operations. 
In 2013, there were no grievances 
about labor practices or incidents of 
discriminations or corruption. 

There were also no legal actions filed 
against Petron in court for anti-trust, 
anti-competitive behavior, and monopoly 
practices. 

Beyond our investments in our workforce, 
we also improved our business processes. 
We completed SAP-SRM Analytics which 

Number and Rate of Employee Turnover by Age, Group, Gender, and Region

Turnover total 89 4% Petron attrition rate is significantly better 
than industry  rate of 15%

% of Total resignation

Turnover by age 20-29 64 72%

30-39 21 24%

40-49 4 4%

50-59 0 0%

60-69 0 0%

Total 89

% of Total resignation

Turnover by gender Male 70 79%

Female 19 21%

complements our already existing SAP 
Supplier Relationship Management 
(SAP-SRM) program and the Vendor 
Portal, a web-based accreditation system 
for suppliers and contractors. Together, 
they supported end-user convenience, 
transparency, efficiency, and better 
compliance.

These new programs, along with other 
initiatives that include negotiated 
discounts, consolidated purchases, 
and introduction of alternative brands, 
enabled us to generate significant 
savings, which in turn allowed us to hit 
our operational targets within budget 
and on time. 

We also improved on our accreditation 
process for suppliers and contractors 
by considering their environmental and 
social performance. This is to ensure 
that they adhere to best practices as 
well as international standards. Thirteen 
percent of our new and major suppliers 
and contractors were screened using our 
new assessment, which includes human 
rights.  We are looking forward to having 
all our top 250 suppliers and contractors 
undergo the same assessment in the 
coming years. 
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Percentage of Employees Covered by Collective 

Bargaining Agreements

	 2013	 2012	 2011	

	 36%	 36%	 31%	
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AT A GLANCE: 
FUELING 
COMMUNITIES

We continue to enhance our presence 
in the community through various 
corporate social responsibility 
(CSR) projects related to education, 
environment, health, community, 
and livelihood. These CSR initiatives 
undergo proper assessment, monitoring, 
and evaluation that are measured 
against and aligned with national and 
international development programs.  

FUEL H.O.P.E. (Helping 

the Filipino children and youth Overcome Poverty through 
Education) remained our main advocacy. Through our 

Tulong Aral ng Petron program (TAP), a partnership with 
the Department of Education (DepEd), Department of 

Social Welfare and Development (DSWD), and various local 
government units (LGUs), we were able to send thousands of 

well-deserving students to school.

TAP, which celebrated its 11th year in 2013, 
came full circle with the introduction of 
the TAP College Scholarship Program. This 
scholarship is open to all outstanding 
graduates of TAP High School.  We ended 
the year with 28 college scholars who 
are currently enrolled in engineering and 
business-related courses. These scholars, 
hopefully, will be our future employees.
We continued to provide infrastructure 
development through classroom 
construction and repair.  In 2013, we 
built the 80th Petron School in San Miguel 
Elementary School, Compostela Valley, a 
province severely affected by Typhoon Pablo.  
We also have an ongoing commitment with 
our different partner schools all over the 
country with the DepEd’s classroom repair 
project, Brigada Eskwela.  

We also contributed to preserving the 
environment by promoting biodiversity 
conservation. Since 2002, we have been 
a leading proponent of the Bataan 
Integrated Coastal Management Program 
(BICMP), which among other things, is 
helping protect the sea-turtle species 
Olive-Riddley in Morong, Bataan. 

We have also been a part of the Boracay 
Beach Management Program (BBMP) in 
Aklan. BBMP has been adopted by the 
Malay Municipal Board as the framework 
for the sustainable development of 
Boracay Island. 

At the center of our sustainability efforts 
is our dedicated workforce. As such, we 
launched IFUEL as our 80th anniversary 
campaign. This Information and Education 
Campaign reinforced the awareness of each 
employee on the sustainability initiatives 
of the company and encouraged them to 
contribute to Petron’s long-term success in 
their own way.
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1,723
Employee volunteers 

equivalent to 

18,846 
volunteer hours

10,366
Beneficiaries of medical missions

781 
Houses built in Navotas and Cagayan de Oro 
in partnership with Gawad Kalinga 
and Habitat for Humanity

Petron 2013 
Social Performance
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630 
Outstanding  elementary and 

high school scholars

80
Petron 

schools 
built

42,048 
Mangroves and tree seedlings planted

3,151 
Current Tulong Aral ng Petron scholars



Going The Extra Mile
Operational Highlights

Petron Corporation
2013 Annual Report

SERVICE BEYOND 
DUTY 
Typhoon Yolanda, one of the world's 
strongest storms in recorded history, left 
unimaginable destruction along its path, 
particularly the Visayas. But in the midst 
of this tragedy were tales of compassion 
from fellow Filipinos and people all over 
the world. Petron employees from across 
all its facilities nationwide were among 
those who immediately stepped up 
and volunteered to help those severely 
affected get back on their feet.   

Through the Bag of Hope fundraising 
campaign, employees, business partners, 
friends, and relatives raised nearly
 13 million to buy packs containing food, 
water, clothing, medicine, and other relief 
items.

Donations poured in from business 
partners here and abroad. We also 
received donations from motorists after 
we activated 500 of our service stations 
nationwide as drop-off centers.Year of
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Petron Foundation, Inc. (PFI) was at the forefront of Yolanda relief 
and rehabilitation efforts in coordination with other companies 
within the San Miguel Group. In the typhoon’s aftermath, PFI 
immediately distributed relief packs in Leyte, Oriental Mindoro, 
Iloilo, Capiz, and Cebu, benefitting 60,000 individuals.  It also 
partnered with the Philippine Red Cross (PRC) and San Miguel 
Foods Inc. to conduct a two-week soup kitchen in various 
municipalities in Leyte. On top of these efforts, we donated 
P1-million worth of fuel to the Red Cross for their rehabilitation efforts. 

We also extended our assistance to 
victims of other typhoons and calamities 
such as typhoon Maring in August and 
the earthquake that shook Bohol and 
Cebu in October. Through our Sagip 
Alalay efforts, 1,000 families received 
relief packs and 2,300 individuals were 
fed during our Soup Kitchen activities in 
several municipalities in Bohol. Similarly, 
we mobilized to aid 4,000 families in 
Zamboanga who were displaced from 
their homes during the MNLF siege in 
early September. 
 
This made 2013 another banner year for 
employee volunteerism. Around 1,800 
employees or 81% of our total workforce 
participated in our Volunteers In Action 
(VIA) program, 6% higher than last year.  
They were joined by more than 12,000 
non-employee volunteers for a total of 
64,000 volunteering hours.

We faced extraordinary challenges 
yet went the extra mile.  We are ready 
to face the years ahead and eager to 
celebrate another eight decades of 
continued success. We will do this with 
the same dedication and commitment 
to excellence and integrity as we have 
shown over the years. Petron is definitely 
here to stay.

SAGIP ALALAY

Volunteerism
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Ramon S. Ang
Filipino, born 1954, has served as the Chairman, the Chief 
Executive Officer and an Executive Director of the Company 
since January 8, 2009. He is also the Chairman of the Company’s 
Executive Committee and Compensation Committee. He holds the 
following positions, among others: Chairman of Petron Malaysia 
Refining & Marketing Berhad (“PMRMB”), Las Lucas Construction 
and Development Corporation (“LLCDC”), New Ventures Realty 
Corporation (“NVRC”), and SEA Refinery Corporation (“SRC”); 
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Petron Marketing 
Corporation (“PMC”) and Petron Freeport Corporation (“PFC”); 
Chairman and President of Mariveles Landco Corporation, 
Petrochemical Asia (HK) Ltd. (“PAHL”), Philippine Polypropylene 
Inc. (“PPI”) and Robinson International Holdings Ltd.; Director of 
Petron Fuel International Sdn. Bhd. (“PFISB”), Petron Oil (M) Sdn. 
Bhd. (“POMSB”), Petron Oil & Gas Mauritius Ltd. and Petron Oil & 
Gas International Sdn Bhd.; Vice Chairman, President and Chief 
Operating Officer of San Miguel Corporation; President and Chief 
Operating Officer of Philippine Airlines, Inc. (“PAL”) and PAL Holdings, 
Inc. (“PAL Holdings”); Chairman of San Miguel Brewery Inc. (“SMB”), 
San Miguel Foods, Inc., The Purefoods-Hormel Company, Inc., San 
Miguel Yamamura Packaging Corporation, South Luzon Tollway 
Corporation, Eastern Telecommunications Philippines Inc., Liberty 
Telecoms Holdings, Inc. (“Liberty Telecoms”), and Philippine Diamond 
Hotel & Resort Inc.; Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of SMC 
Global Power Holdings Corp.; Chairman and President of San Miguel 
Properties, Inc., Bell Telecommunication Philippines, Inc., Atea 
Tierra Corporation, Cyber Bay Corporation and Philippine Oriental 
Realty Development Inc.; Vice Chairman of Ginebra San Miguel, Inc. 
(“GSMI”) and San Miguel Pure Foods Company, Inc. (“SMPFC”); and 
President and Chief Executive Officer of Top Frontier Investment 
Holdings Inc. (“Top Frontier”); Director of other subsidiaries and 
affiliates of SMC in the Philippines and the Southeast Asia Region.  
Of the companies in which Mr. Ang holds directorships, SMC, PAL 
Holdings, Liberty Telecoms, GSMI, SMPFC and Top Frontier are also 
listed with the Philippine Stock Exchange (“PSE”). Previously, Mr. Ang 
was the Chief Executive Officer of the Paper Industries Corporation 
of the Philippines and Executive Managing Director of Northern 
Cement Corporation, Aquacor Food Marketing, Inc., Marketing 
Investors Inc., PCY Oil Mills, Metroplex Commodities, Southern 
Island Oil Mills and Indophil Oil Corporation. Mr. Ang has a Bachelor 
of Science degree in Mechanical Engineering from the Far Eastern 
University. 

Eduardo M. Cojuangco, Jr.
Filipino, born 1935, has served as a Director of the Company since 
January 8, 2009. He holds the following positions, among others: 
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of SMC and GSMI; Chairman 
of ECJ & Sons Agricultural Enterprises Inc., Eduardo Cojuangco Jr. 
Foundation Inc. and SMPFC; and Director of Caiñaman Farms Inc. 
Mr. Cojuangco was formerly a director of MERALCO, member of the 
Philippine House of Representatives (1970-1972), Governor of Tarlac 
Province (1967-1979) and Philippine Ambassador Plenipotentiary. 
He also served as the President and Chief Executive Officer of United 
Coconut Planters Bank, President and Director of United Coconut Life 
Assurance Corporation, and Governor of the Development Bank of 
the Philippines. Of the companies in which Mr. Cojuangco currently 
holds directorships, SMC, GSMI and SMPFC are also listed with the 
PSE. He attended the College of Agriculture at the University of the 
Philippines – Los Baños and the California Polytechnic College in 
San Luis Obispo, U.S.A. and was conferred a post graduate degree 
in Economics, honoris causa, from the University of Mindanao, a 
post graduate degree in Agri-Business, honoris causa, from the 
Tarlac College of Agriculture, a post graduate degree in Humanities, 
honoris causa, from the University of Negros Occidental-Recoletos, 
and a post graduate degree in Humanities, honoris causa, from the 
Tarlac State University.

Lubin B. Nepomuceno
Filipino, born 1951, has served as the President of the Company since 
February 19, 2013. He is also a member of the Company’s Executive 
Committee, Audit Committee and Compensation Committee. He 
holds the following positions, among others: President of PMC; 
Director of PMRMB, PFISB, POMSB, LLCDC, NVRC, PFC, PPI, PAHL, 
Mariveles Landco Corporation, Robinson International Holdings, Ltd. 
and Petron Singapore Trading Pte. Ltd.; Trustee of PFI; Director of 
San Miguel Paper Packaging Corporation and Mindanao Corrugated 
Fibreboard Inc.; Independent Director of MNHPI and President of 
Archen Technologies, Inc. Mr. Nepomuceno has held various board 
and executive positions in the San Miguel Group.  He started with 
SMC as a furnace engineer at the Manila Glass Plant in 1973 and 
rose to the ranks to become the General Manager of the San Miguel 
Packaging Group in 1998.  He was also formerly the Senior Vice 
President and General Manager of the Company from September 
2009 to February 2013. Mr. Nepomuceno holds a Bachelor of 
Science degree in Chemical Engineering and Masters Degree in 
Business Administration from the De La Salle University. He also 
attended Advanced Management Program at the University of 
Hawaii, University of Pennsylvania and Japan’s Sakura Bank Business 
Management.
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Estelito P. Mendoza
Filipino, born 1930, served as a Director of the Company from 1974 
to 1986; thereafter, since January 8, 2009. He is a member of the 
Nomination Committee and of the Audit Committee.  He is likewise 
a member of the Board of Directors of SMC, Philippine National 
Bank (“PNB”) and PAL. Of the companies in which Atty. Mendoza 
currently holds directorships, SMC and PNB are also listed with the 
PSE.  He previously served as a Director of MERALCO. He has now 
been engaged in the practice of law for more than 60 years, and 
presently under the firm name Estelito P. Mendoza and Associates.  
He has consistently been listed as a “Leading Individual in Dispute 
Resolution” among lawyers in the Philippines in the following 
directories/journals: “The Asia Legal 500”, “Chambers of Asia” and 
“Which Lawyer?” yearbooks for several years.  He has also been 
a Professorial Lecturer of law at the University of the Philippines 
and served as Solicitor General, Minister of Justice, Member of the 
Batasang Pambansa and Provincial Governor of Pampanga.  He 
was also the Chairman of the Sixth (Legal) Committee, 31st Session 
of the UN General Assembly and the Special Committee on the 
Charter of the United Nations and the Strengthening of the Role 
of the Organization. He holds a Bachelor of Laws degree from the 
University of the Philippines (cum laude) and Master of Laws degree 
from Harvard Law School. He is the recipient on June 28, 2010 of a 
Presidential Medal of Merit as Special Counsel on Marine and Ocean 
Concerns and was also awarded by the University of the Philippines 
Alumni Association its 1975 “Professional Award in Law” and in 2013 
its “Lifetime Distinguished Achievement Award”. 

Bernardino R. Abes
Filipino, born 1930, has served as a Director of the Company since 
July 31, 2001. He was formerly the Philippine Presidential Adviser 
on Legislative Affairs and Head of the Presidential Legislative Liaison 
Office in 2001, Consultant to the Philippine Senate (1992-1993), 
Director of the Philippine Bureau of Labor Relations (1957-1961), 

Eric O. Recto
Filipino, born 1963, has served as the Vice Chairman of the Company 
since February 19, 2013 and as a Director since July 31, 2008. He 
holds the following positions, among others: Chairman and Chief 
Executive Officer of Petron Foundation, Inc. (“PFI”); Chairman of 
Overseas Ventures Insurance Corporation Ltd. (“Ovincor”); Director 
of Petron Oil & Gas Mauritius Ltd., Petron Oil & Gas International 
Sdn Bhd, and PMC; Director of SMC; Chairman of Philippine 
Bank of Communications (“PBCom”); Chairman and CEO of ISM 
Communications Corporation (“ISM”), Vice Chairman of Philweb 
Corporation (“Philweb”), Atok-Big Wedge Corporation (“Atok”) and 
Alphaland Corporation (“Alphaland”); and President and Director 
of Q-Tech Alliance Holdings, Inc. Of the companies in which Mr. 
Recto holds directorships, SMC, PBCom, Philweb, Atok, Alphaland 
and ISM are also listed with the PSE. Mr. Recto was previously a 
Director of PMRMB and the Manila Electric Company (“MERALCO”).  
He was formerly the Undersecretary of the Philippine Department 
of Finance, in charge of both the International Finance Group and 
the Privatization Office from 2002 to 2005. He also served as the 
President of the Company (2008-2013) and as Senior Vice President 
and Chief Finance Officer of Alaska Milk Corporation (2000-2002) 
and Belle Corporation (1994-2000).  Mr. Recto has a degree in 
Industrial Engineering from the University of the Philippines and a 
Masters degree in Business Administration from the Johnson School, 
Cornell University.

Secretary of the Philippine Department of Labor (1962-1964), 
Administrator and Chairman of the Philippine Social Security System 
(1963-1965) and Chairman of the Philippine Social Security System 
(2001-2004) and Philippine Government Service Insurance System 
(2004-2010). He also served as a Director of MERALCO, PSE, Union 
Bank of the Philippines, Philex Mining Corporation, Belle Corporation 
and Clark Development Corporation. Mr. Abes graduated from the 
University of Santo Tomas with a Bachelor of Laws degree. 

Aurora T. Calderon
Filipino, born 1954, has served as a Director of the Company since 
August 13, 2010. She is a member of the Audit Committee and the 
Compensation Committee. She holds the following positions, among 
others: Senior Vice President and Senior Executive Assistant to the 
President and Chief Operating Officer of SMC; Director of PMRMB, 
Petron Oil & Gas Mauritius Ltd., Petron Oil & Gas International 
Sdn Bhd, PMC, PFC, SRC, NVRC, LLCDC, Thai San Miguel Liquor Co., 
Ltd., SMC Global Power Holdings Corp., Rapid Thoroughfares Inc., 
Trans Aire Development Holdings Corp., Vega Telecom, Inc., Bell 
Telecommunications Company, Inc., A.G.N. Philippines, Inc. and 
various subsidiaries of SMC; Director of PAL Holdings; and Director 
and Treasurer of Top Frontier. Of the companies in which Ms. 
Calderon currently holds directorships, PAL Holdings and Top Frontier 
are also listed with the PSE.  She has served as a Director of MERALCO 
(January 2009-May 2009), Senior Vice President of Guoco Holdings 
(1994-1998), Chief Financial Officer and Assistant to the President 
of PICOP Resources (1990-1998) and Assistant to the President and 
Strategic Planning at the Elizalde Group (1981-1989). A certified 
public accountant, Ms. Calderon graduated magna cum laude 
from the University of the East in 1973 with a degree in Business 
Administration major in Accounting and earned her Masters degree 
in Business Administration from the Ateneo de Manila University in 
1980. She is a member of the Financial Executives and the Philippine 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Eric O. Recto
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Mirzan Mahathir
Malaysian, born 1958, has served as a Director of the Company 
since August 13, 2010. Among other positions, he is currently the 
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Crescent Capital Sdn Bhd. 
He holds directorships in several public companies in South East 
Asia and the United States. He also serves as President of the Asian 
Strategy & Leadership Institute, Chairman of several charitable 
foundations and a member of the Wharton School Executive 
Board for Asia and the Business Advisory Council of United 
Nations ESCAP. He was formerly the Executive Chairman and 
President of Konsortium Logistik Berhad (1992-2007), Executive 
Chairman of Sabit Sdn Bhd (1990-1992), Associate of Salomon 
Brothers in New York, U.S.A. (1986-1990) and Systems Engineer at 
IBM World Trade Corporation (1982-1985). He graduated with a 
Bachelor of Science (Honours) degree in Computer Science from 
Brighton Polytechnic, United Kingdom and obtained his Masters 
in Business Administration from the Wharton School, University of 
Pennsylvania, USA.   

Ma. Romela M. Bengzon
Filipino, born 1960, has served as a Director of the Company since 
August 13, 2010. She holds the following positions, among others: 
Director of PMC; Managing Partner of the Bengzon Law Firm; and 
professor at the De La Salle University Graduate School of Business, 
Far Eastern University Institute of Law MBA-JD Program, the Ateneo 
Graduate School of Business and Regis University. She was formerly 
a Philippine government Honorary Trade Ambassador to the 
European Union, and Chairperson of the Committee on Economic 
Liberalization and Deputy Secretary General of the Consultative 
Commission, both under the Philippine Office of the President. A 
Political Science graduate of the University of the Philippines in 1980 
(with honors), she obtained her Bachelor of Laws from the Ateneo de 
Manila University in 1985. 

Virgilio S. Jacinto 
Filipino, born 1956, has served as a Director of the Company since 
August 13, 2010. He holds the following positions, among others: 
Corporate Secretary, Compliance Officer, Senior Vice President 
and General Counsel of SMC; Director of San Miguel Brewery 
Inc.; Corporate Secretary and Compliance Officer of Top Frontier; 
Corporate Secretary of GSMI and the other subsidiaries and affiliates 
of SMC; and Director of various other local and offshore subsidiaries 
of SMC. Mr. Jacinto has served as a Director and Corporate Secretary 
of United Coconut Planters Bank, a Partner of the Villareal Law 
Offices (June 1985-May 1993) and an Associate of Sycip, Salazar, 
Feliciano & Hernandez Law Office (1981-1985).  Atty. Jacinto is an 
Associate Professor of Law at the University of the Philippines. He 
obtained his law degree from the University of the Philippines (cum 
laude) where he was the class salutatorian and placed sixth in the 
1981 bar examinations.  He holds a Master of Laws degree from 
Harvard University.  

Ma. Romela M. Bengzon Virgilio S. JacintoMirzan Mahathir

Board of Directors

Roberto V. Ongpin
Filipino, born 1937, has served as a Director of the Company 
since July 31, 2008. He holds the following positions, among 
others: Chairman of Philweb, ISM, Alphaland and ATOK; 
Director of SMC, Shangri-la Asia Limited (Hong Kong), Forum 
Energy plc (London) and PAL Holdings, Inc. and Deputy 
Chairman of South China Morning Post (Hong Kong). Mr. 
Ongpin was formerly the Philippine Minister of Trade and 
Industry (1979-1986). He also served as Chairman and 
Managing Partner of SGV & Co. (1970-1979). Of the companies 
in which Mr. Ongpin currently holds directorships, Philweb, 
ISM, Alphaland, ATOK and SMC are also listed with the PSE.  Mr. 
Ongpin holds a Bachelor of Science in Business Administration, 
cum laude, from the Ateneo de Manila University.  He is a 
certified public accountant and has a Master’s degree in 
Business Administration from the Harvard Business School.
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Nelly F. Villafuerte
Filipino, born 1937, has served as a Director of the Company since 
December 1, 2011. She is also a Director of Top Frontier, another 
company listed with the PSE.   She is a columnist for the Manila 
Bulletin and was a former Member of the Monetary Board of 
the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas from 2005 until July 2011. She 
is an author of business handbooks on microfinance, credit card 
transactions, exporting and cyberspace and a four-volume series 
on the laws on banking and financial intermediaries (Philippines).  
Atty. Villafuerte has served as Governor of the Board of Investments 
(1998-2005), Undersecretary for the International Sector (Trade 
Promotion and Marketing Group) of the Department of Trade and 
Industry (“DTI”) (July 1998-May 2000), and Undersecretary for the 
Regional Operations Group of the DTI (May 2000-2005).  She holds 
a Masters degree in Business Management from the Asian Institute 
of Management (“AIM”) and was a professor of international law/
trade/marketing at the graduate schools of AIM, Ateneo Graduate 
School of Business and De La Salle Graduate School of Business and 
Economics.  Atty. Villafuerte obtained her Associate in Arts and law 
degrees from the University of the Philippines and ranked in the top 
ten in the bar examinations. 

Ron W. Haddock 
American, born 1940, has served as a Director of the Company since 
December 2, 2008. He holds the following positions, among others: 
Executive Chairman of AEI Services, L.L.C.; and member of the board 
of Alon Energy USA. Mr. Haddock was formerly Honorary Consul of 
Belgium in Dallas, Texas. He also served as Chairman of Safety-Kleen 
Systems; Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Prisma Energy 
International and FINA, and held various management positions in 
Exxon including: Manager of Baytown Refinery; Corporate Planning 
Manager; Vice President for Refining; Executive Assistant to the 
Chairman; and Vice President and Director of Esso Eastern, Inc. He 
holds a degree in Mechanical Engineering from Purdue University. 

Reynaldo G. David
Filipino, born 1942, has served as an Independent Director of the 
Company since May 12, 2009. He is the concurrent Chairman of the 
Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee and likewise a 
member of the Compensation Committee. He has previously held, 
among others, the following positions: President and Chief Executive 
Officer of the Development Bank of the Philippines; Chairman 
of NDC Maritime Leasing Corporation; and Director of DBP Data 
Center, Inc. and Al-Amanah Islamic Bank of the Philippines.  Other 
past positions include: Independent Director of ISM and ATOK, 
Chairman of LGU Guarantee Corporation, Vice Chairman, Chief 
Executive Officer and Executive Committee Chairman of Export and 
Industry Bank (September 1997-September 2004), Director and 
Chief Executive Officer of Unicorp Finance Limited and Consultant of 
PT United City Bank (concurrently held from 1993-1997), Director of 
Megalink Inc., Vice President and FX Manager of the Bank of Hawaii 
(April 1984-August 1986), various directorships and/or executive 
positions with The Pratt Group (September 1986-December 
1992), President and Chief Operating Officer of Producers Bank 
of the Philippines (October 1982-November 1983), President and 
Chief Operation Officer of International Corporation Bank (March 
1979-September 1982), and Vice President and Treasurer of Citibank 
N. A. (November 1964-February 1979).  A Ten Outstanding Young 
Men awardee for Offshore Banking in 1977, he was also awarded 
by the Association of Development Financing Institutions in Asia 
& the Pacific as the Outstanding Chief Executive Officer in 2007. A 
certified public accountant since 1964, he graduated from the De 
La Salle University with a combined Bachelor of Arts and Bachelor 
of Science in Commerce degrees in 1963 and has attended the 
Advance Management Program of  the University of Hawaii (1974). 
He was conferred with the title Doctor of Laws, honoris causa, by the 
Palawan State University in 2005.

Nelly F. Villafuerte Ron W. Haddock Reynaldo G. David 
- Independent Director

Artemio V. Panganiban  
- Independent Director

Artemio V. Panganiban 
Filipino, born 1936, has served as an Independent Director of the 
Company since October 21, 2010. He is a member of the Audit 
Committee. Apart from Petron, he  is an independent director of the 
following listed companies: MERALCO, Bank of the Philippine Islands, 
First Philippine Holdings Corp., Philippine Long Distance Telephone 
Co., Metro Pacific Investment Corp., Robinsons Land Corp., GMA 
Network, Inc., GMA Holdings, Inc., Asian Terminals, Inc., and Non-
executive Director of Jollibee Foods Corporation; columnist for the 
Philippine Daily Inquirer; and officer, adviser or consultant to several 
business, civic, educational and religious organizations. Director 
Panganiban was formerly the Chief Justice of the Supreme Court of 
the Philippines (2005-2006); Associate Justice of the Supreme Court 
(1995-2005); Chairperson of the Philippine House of Representatives 
Electoral Tribunal (2004-2005); Senior Partner of Panganiban Benitez 
Parlade Africa & Barinaga Law Office (1963-1995); President of 
Baron Travel Corporation (1967-1993); and professor at the Far 
Eastern University, Assumption College and San Sebastian College 
(1961-1970). He is an author of over ten books and has received 
various awards for his numerous accomplishments, most notably 
the “Renaissance Jurist of the 21st Century” conferred by the 
Supreme Court in 2006 and the “Outstanding Manilan” for 1991 by 
the City of Manila.  Chief Justice Panganiban earned his Bachelor of 
Laws degree, cum laude, from the Far Eastern University in 1960 and 
placed sixth in the bar exam that same year.
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Ramon S. Ang
Chairman & CEO

Eric O. Recto
Vice Chairman

Lubin B. Nepomuceno
President

Emmanuel E. Eraña
SVP & Chief Finance 
Officer

Susan Y. Yu
VP, Procurement

Rowena O. Cortez
VP, Supply

Freddie P. Yumang
VP, Refinery

Rosario D.  
Vergel de Dios
AVP, Human Resources

Mary Ann M. Neri
AVP, Marketing

Andrew S. Fortuno
AVP, Operations

Magnolia D. Uy
AVP, Market Planning, 
Research and Sales 
Information

Charmaine V. Canillas
AVP, Corporate Affairs

Jhoanna Jasmine M. 
Javier-Elacio
Assistant Corporate 
Secretary

Management Committee

Corporate Governance

Archie B. Gupalor
VP, National Sales

Efren P. Gabrillo
VP, Controllers

Albert S. Sarte
VP, Treasurers

Joel Angelo C. Cruz
VP, General Counsel & 
Corporate Secretary/
Compliance Officer

Rodulfo L. Tablante
VP, Operations

Jaime O. Lu
VP & Country Head, 
Petron Malaysia

Julieta L. Ventigan
AVP, Business Planning & 
Development

Nathaniel R. Orillos
AVP, Refinery Operations

Nolan R. Rada
AVP, Reseller Trade

Conrado S. Rivera, Jr.
AVP, Industrial Trade

David M. Mahilum
AVP, Refinery 
Maintenance

Roland R. Evangelista
AVP, Power Plant & 
Utilities

Dennis M. Floro
AVP, Supply

The CG Manual recognizes and upholds 
the rights of stakeholders in the Company 
and reflects the key internal control 
features necessary for good corporate 
governance, such as the duties and 
responsibilities of the Board of Directors 
and the board committees, the active  
operation of the Company in a sound 
and prudent manner, the presence of 
organizational and procedural controls 
supported by an effective management 
information and risk management 
reporting systems, and the adoption 
of independent audit measures that 
monitor the adequacy and effectiveness 
of the Company’s governance, operations 
and information systems.  

Petron Corporation (“Petron” or the “Company”) adopted its 
Manual on Corporate Governance    (the “CG Manual”) on July 

1, 2002. In compliance with Memorandum Circular No. 6, Series 
of 2009 of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”), 

amending SEC Memorandum Circular No. 2, Series of 2002, the 
Company further adopted revisions to the CG Manual which were 

approved by the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board 
of Directors”) on October 21, 2010.  Further revisions to the CG 

Manual were also undertaken and approved by the Board of 
Directors on March 2, 2011 and May 6, 2013.  
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Voting Right 
 
Common stockholders have the right 
to elect, remove and replace directors 
and vote on corporate acts and matters 
that require their consent or approval in 
accordance with the Corporation Code of 
the Philippines (the “Corporation Code”).  

At each stockholders’ meeting, a 
common stockholder is entitled to one 
vote, in person or by proxy, for each of 
share of the capital stock held by such 
stockholder, subject to the provisions of 
the Company’s by-laws, including the 
provision on cumulative voting in the case 
of the election of directors.  

The Company’s by-laws specifically 
provide for cumulative voting in the 
election of directors.  The CG Manual also 
requires the affirmative vote of 70% of 
total issued and outstanding shares to 
remove a director without cause.

Preferred stockholders have the right to 
vote on certain corporate acts as provided 
and specified in the Corporation Code. 

The Board of Directors is required by the 
CG Manual to be transparent and fair in 
the conduct of the annual and special 
stockholders’ meetings of the Company. The 
stockholders are encouraged to personally 
attend such meetings and, if they cannot 
attend, they are apprised ahead of time of 
their right to appoint a proxy.  

Right to Information of 
Shareholders

Accurate and timely information is made 
available to the stockholders to enable 
them to make a sound judgment on 
all matters brought to their attention 
for consideration or approval.  In 2013, 
the notice of the annual stockholders’ 
meeting held on May 21, 2013 was 

The Company is committed to pursuing 
good corporate governance. It thus keeps 
abreast of new developments in and 
leading principles and practices on good 
corporate governance. It also continuously 
reviews its own policies and practices 
as it competes in a continually evolving 
business environment while taking 
into account the Company’s corporate 
objectives and the best interests of its 
stakeholders and the Company.  

Compliance
The CG Manual specifically provides 
that the Board of Directors and the 
management of the Company exercise 
sound judgment in reviewing and 
directing how the Company implements 
the requirements of good corporate 
governance. 

Pursuant to the CG Manual, the Board of Directors has appointed 
Atty. Joel Angelo C. Cruz, Vice President – Office of the General 

Counsel and Corporate Secretary (“OGCCS”), as the Compliance 
Officer tasked to monitor compliance with the CG Manual and 
applicable laws, rules and regulations. The Compliance Officer 

directly reports to the Chairman of the Board of Directors and has 
direct access to the Board of Directors, through the Board Audit 

Committee, without interference from Management.

The Compliance Officer, through the 
OGCCS, periodically releases memoranda 
to employees, officers and directors on 
good governance policies being adopted 
by the Company and new corporate 
governance requirements set by 
applicable law, rules and regulations.  

Shareholders’ Rights
The Company is committed to respect the 
legal rights of its stockholders.
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released on April 26, 2013 and further 
published in The Philippine Star and The 
Manila Times on April 26, 2013.

The Company furnishes stockholders its 
most recent financial statement showing 
in reasonable detail its assets and 
liabilities and the result of its operations.  

At the annual meeting of the 
stockholders, the Board of Directors 
presents to the stockholders a financial 
report of the operations of the Company 
for the preceding year, which includes 
financial statements duly signed and 
certified by an independent public 
accountant, and allows the stockholders 
to ask questions or raise concerns. 
Duly authorized representatives of the 
Company’s external auditor are also 
present at the meeting to respond to 
appropriate questions concerning the 
financial statements of the Company.

In addition to the foregoing, the 
Company replies to requests for 
information and email and telephone 
queries from the stockholders and keeps 
them informed through the Company’s 
timely disclosures to the Philippine Stock 
Exchange (“PSE”) and the SEC, its regular 
quarterly briefings and investor briefings 
and conferences, and the Company’s 
website. The Company website makes 
available for viewing and download the 
Company’s disclosures and filings with 
the SEC and PSE, its media releases, 
and other salient information of the 
Company, including its governance, 
business, operations, performance, 
corporate social responsibility projects 
and sustainability efforts. 

Right to Dividends

Stockholders have the right to receive 
dividends subject to the discretion of the 
Board of Directors.  

It is the policy of the Company to declare as dividends out of its 
unrestricted retained earnings at least 25% of its unappropriated 
net income (after taxes) for the prior fiscal year, payable either 
in cash, distribution of property, or by issuance of new shares 
of stock. The Board of Directors determines, by resolution, the 
exact amount and the date of payment of, and the shareholders 
entitled to, the dividends.

The dividends for the preferred shares are 
fixed at the rate of 9.5281% per annum 
calculated in reference to the offer price 
of   100 per share on a 30/360-day basis 
and shall be payable quarterly in arrears, 
whenever approved by the Board of 
Directors. Since the listing of the preferred 
shares in March 2010, cash dividends have 
been paid out in March, June, September, 
and December of each year. 

In 2013, the Company paid out a cash 
dividend of   0.05 per share to common 
shareholders and a total of   9.528 per 
share to preferred shareholders. 

Appraisal Right
The stockholders have the right to 
dissent and demand payment of the 
fair value of their shares in the manner 
provided for under the Corporation 
Code, under any of the following 
circumstances: (a) when there is a 
change or restriction in the rights of any 
stockholder or class of shares; (b) when 
the corporation authorizes preferences 
in any respect superior to those of 
outstanding shares of any class; (c) when 
there is an extension or shortening of 
the term of corporate existence; (d) in 
case of a sale, lease, exchange, transfer, 
mortgage, pledge or other disposition of 
all or substantially all of the corporate 
property or assets; (e) in case of a merger 
or consolidation; and (f) in the event of 
an investment of corporate funds in any 
other corporation or business or for any 
purpose other than the primary purpose 
for which the corporation is organized.
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Rights of 
Minority Shareholders

Rights of Minority Shareholders

Minority stockholders are granted the right to propose the holding of a meeting, and 
the right to propose items in the agenda of the stockholders’ meeting, provided the 
items are for legitimate business purposes and in accordance with law, jurisprudence 
and best practice.

The Company’s by-laws specifically provide that a special meeting of the stockholders 
may be called at the written request of one or more stockholders representing at least 
20% of the total issued and outstanding capital stock of the Company entitled to 
vote, and which request states the purpose or purposes of the proposed meeting and 
delivered to and called by the Corporate Secretary at the Company’s principal office.

Under the Company’s by-laws, cumulative 
voting is allowed in the election of 
directors. A common stockholder may 
therefore distribute his/her votes per 
share to as many persons as there 
are directors to be elected, or he/she 
may cumulate his shares and give one 
candidate as many votes as the number 
of directors to be elected multiplied by 
the number of shares he/she  has, or he/
she  may distribute them on the same 
principle among as many candidates as 
he/she  shall see fit; provided, that the 
total number of votes cast by him/her 
shall not exceed the number of shares 
owned by him/her as shown in the books 
of the Company multiplied by the total 
number of directors to be elected.

Preferred stockholders have the right to 
vote on certain corporate acts specified in 
the  Corporation Code. 

If at any stockholders’ meeting a vote by 
ballot shall be taken, the Company’s by-
laws require that a voting committee be 
created which will adopt its own rules to 
govern the voting and take charge of the 
voting proceedings and the preparation 
and distribution of the ballots.  Each 
member of the voting committee, who 
need not be a stockholder, will subscribe 
to an oath to faithfully execute his/her 
duties as an inspector of votes with strict 
impartiality and according the best of 
his/her ability.  In any event, the external 
auditor of the Company will supervise the 
voting proceedings. 

Shareholders’ Meeting and 
Voting Procedures

All the meetings of the stockholders are 
held in the principal place of business 
of the Company or any location within 
Metro Manila, Philippines as may be 
designated by the Board of Directors.  In 
2013, the annual stockholders’ meeting 
was held at the Valle Verde Country Club 
in Pasig City, Metro Manila.

The Company encourages shareholding 
voting rights and exerts efforts to remove 
excessive or unnecessary costs and other 
administrative impediments to the 
meaningful participation in meetings 
and/or voting in person or by proxy by 
all its stockholders, whether individual 
or institutional investors. During the 
annual stockholders’ meeting in 2013, 
the Company provided shuttle services in 
strategic points in the vicinity of the Valle 
Verde Country Club to stockholders to and 
from the meeting venue.

At each stockholders’ meeting, a common 
stockholder is entitled to one vote, in 
person or by proxy, for each share of 
the common capital stock held by such 
stockholder, subject to the provisions of 
the Company’s by-laws, including the 
provision on cumulative voting in the case 
of the election of directors.  
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Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is responsible for 
overseeing management of the Company 
and fostering the long-term success of 
the Company and securing its sustained 
competitiveness and profitability in a 
manner consistent with the fiduciary 
responsibilities of the Board of Directors 
and the corporate objectives and 
best interests of the Company and its 
stakeholders. 

Compliance with the principles of 
good corporate governance starts with 
the Board of Directors. A director’s 
office is one of trust and confidence. 
A director should therefore act in the 
best interest of the Company and its 
stakeholders in a manner characterized 
by transparency, accountability and 
fairness. To this end, the CG Manual 
requires a director to exercise leadership, 
prudence and integrity in directing the 
Company towards sustained progress. 
The CG Manual further expressly requires 
that a director conduct fair business 
transactions with the Company by fully 
disclosing any interest he/she may have 
in any matter or transaction to be acted 
upon by the Board of Directors and excuse 
himself/herself in the decision-making 
process of the Board of Directors with 
respect thereto and, in general, ensure 
that personal interest does not cause 
actual or potential conflict of interest 
with, or bias against, the interest of the 
Company or prejudice decisions of the 
Board of Directors.  The Company also has 
a multiple board seat policy enunciated 
in the CG Manual that requires a director 
to exercise due discretion in accepting 
and holding directorships other than in 
the Company, provided that, in holding 
such directorships, such director shall 
ensure that his/her capacity to diligently 
and efficiently perform his duties and 
responsibilities as a director of the 
Company is not compromised.

The Board of Directors is composed of 
15 members who are elected and hold 
office in accordance with the Company’s 
by-laws and applicable laws. The directors 
are elected annually at the stockholders’ 
meeting and hold the position until their 
successors shall have been duly elected 
and qualified pursuant to the Company’s 
by-laws.  

The membership of the Board of Directors is a combination 
of executive and non-executive directors (who include the 
independent directors) in order that no director or small group of 
directors can dominate the decision-making process. The non-
executive directors possess such qualifications and stature that 
enable them to effectively participate in the deliberations of the 
Board of Directors. The diverse and varied skills, background and 
expertise of the directors ensure that matters that come before 
the Board of Directors are extensively discussed and evaluated. 
The names, profiles, backgrounds and shareholdings of the 
directors are disclosed in the definitive information statement of 
the Company distributed prior to annual stockholders’ meetings 
as well as in the SEC Form 17-A and the Annual Corporate 
Governance Report of the Company.  

In 2013, the Board of Directors had 
six (6) meetings held on February 19, 
March 18, May 6, May 21, August 6 
and November 4.  The schedule of the 
meetings for any given year is always 
presented to the directors the year before.  
The Board of Directors was thus advised 
of the schedule of the board meetings 
for 2013 at the board meeting held on 
November 12, 2012.  Should any matter 
requiring immediate approval by the 
Board of Directors arise, such matters 
are reviewed, considered and approved 
at meetings of the Executive Committee, 
subject to the Company’s by-laws.  Special 
meetings of the Board of Directors 
may also be called when necessary in 
accordance with the Company’s by-laws.
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The attendance of the directors at the board meetings held in 2013 is set out below:

Director’s Name February 19 
Special Board 

Meeting

March 18 
Regular Board 

Meeting

May 6 
Regular Board 

Meeting

May 21 
Organizational 

Meeting

August 6 
Regular Board 

Meeting

November 4 
Regular Board 

Meeting

Ramon S. Ang ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢

Eduardo M.  
Cojuangco, Jr.

¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢

Roberto V. Ongpin ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ £ ¢

Estelito P. Mendoza ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ £

Bernardino R. Abes ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢

Eric O. Recto ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢

Lubin B. 
Nepomuceno*

N/A ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢

Ron W. Haddock £ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢

Mirzan Mahathir ¢ ¢ £ ¢ £ £

Romela M. Bengzon ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ £

Ferdinand K. 
Constantino**

¢ N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Aurora T. Calderon ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢

Virgilio S. Jacinto ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢

Nelly Favis-Villafuerte ¢ ¢ £ ¢ ¢ ¢

Artemio V. 
Panganiban

¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢

Reynaldo G. David ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ £ ¢

Legend:  ¢ Present      £Absent   

* Elected as director on February 19, 2013 ** Resigned as director on February 19, 2013

Independent Directors

In line with existing laws and regulations, the Company has at least two (2) 
independent directors in its Board of Directors, Mr. Reynaldo G. David and former 
Supreme Court Chief Justice Artemio V. Panganiban. 

The CG Manual defines an independent director as “a person who, apart from his fees 
and shareholdings, is independent of management and free from any business or other 
relationship which could, or could reasonably be perceived to materially interfere with 
his exercise of independent judgment in carrying out his responsibilities as a director.” 
An independent director is required by the CG Manual to submit to the Corporate 
Secretary a certification confirming that he possesses all the qualifications and none of 
the disqualifications of an independent director at the time of his/her election and/or 
re-election as an independent director.

The Chairman and Chief 
Executive Officer; the 
President

Unless the Board of Directors designates 
the Chairman as the Chief Executive 
Officer (“CEO”) pursuant to the 
Company’s by-laws, the roles of the 
Chairman and CEO of the Company are 
separate.  The Board of Directors elected 
Mr. Ramon S. Ang as the Chairman and 
CEO of the Company.  

Notwithstanding that the positions 
of Chairman and CEO are held by one 
person, the Company has a sufficient 
number of directors and executives from 
diverse backgrounds and with varied 
expertise that ensures balanced and 
informed collegial decisions.  Further, 
the position of President in the Company 
is held by a person other than the CEO.   
Moreover, the general resolutions of the 
Company that set out the approval and 
signing authorities for regular corporate 
transactions matters provide for certain 
matters for which the joint approval of 
both the Chairman and the President is 
required.

In addition to his duties and 
responsibilities as stated in the 
Company’s by-laws, the Chairman is 
responsible for the following matters:  
(a) ensuring that the meetings of the 
Board of Directors are held in accordance 
with the Company’s by-laws or as the 
Chairman may deem necessary; (b) 
supervising the preparation of the 
agenda of the meeting in coordination 
with the Corporate Secretary, taking 
into consideration the suggestions of 
Management and the directors; and 
(c) maintaining qualitative and timely 
lines of communication and information 
between the Board of Directors and 
Management.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is composed 
of three (3) directors with an independent 
director serving as its Chairman and 
with the Corporate Secretary acting as its 
secretary. 

The Nomination Committee is 
responsible for pre-screening and 
shortlisting candidates nominated 
to become members of the Board of 
Directors and other appointments that 
require board approval to ensure that the 
director-candidates meet the criteria for 
election, i.e., they have the qualifications 
and none of the disqualifications set 
out in the law and in the CG Manual.  
The Nomination Committee thus holds 
meetings before the election of any 
director or the appointment of any officer 
requiring board approval to screen the 
candidate.  In the case of independent 
directors, the Company’s by-laws provide 
that their nomination be conducted 
by the Nomination Committee prior 
to the stockholders’ meeting.  The 
Company’s by-laws further require the 
Nomination Committee to prepare a 
final list of candidates who have passed 
the guidelines, screening policies and 
parameters and are eligible for election as 
independent director.  

Nomination 
Committee

Board Committees
The Board of Directors constituted the 
board committees described below in 
accordance with the principles of good 
corporate governance and pursuant to 
the Company’s by-laws. 

The CG Manual sets out the role, 
authority, duties and responsibilities, and 
the procedures of each committee and 
guides the conduct of its functions.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee is composed of 
not less than three (3) members, which 
shall include the Chairman of the Board 
of Directors and the President, with two 
(2) alternate members. The Executive 
Committee, when the Board of Directors 
is not in session, may exercise the powers 
of the latter in the management of the 
business and affairs of the Company, 
except with respect to (a) the approval 
of any action for which stockholders’ 
approval is also required; (b) the filling of 
vacancies in the Board of Directors;  (c) 
the amendment or repeal of the by-laws 
of the adoption of new by-laws; (d) the 
amendment or repeal of any resolution 
of the Board of Directors which by its 
express terms is not so amendable or 
repealable; (e) a distribution of dividends 
to the stockholders;  and (f) such other 
matters as may be specifically excluded or 
limited by the Board of Directors.

The CG Manual mandates the Executive 
Committee to exercise the authority 
granted to it with utmost judiciousness 
and report regularly to the Board of 
Directors at its subsequent meeting for 
information. 

The Executive Committee is chaired by Mr. Ramon S. Ang with 
Mr. Lubin B. Nepomuceno and  Mr. Roberto V. Ongpin as members.  
Mr. Eric O. Recto and Ms. Aurora T. Calderon act as alternate 
members of the Executive Committee.  

In 2013, the Executive Committee held four (4) meetings on 
January 2, January 21, June 4, and October 10. All the resolutions 
approved by the Executive Committee were passed with the 
unanimous vote of the committee members in attendance 
(whether regular members or alternate members) and later 
presented to and ratified by the Board of Directors at the board 
meeting held after each approved resolution.  
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The Nomination Committee, in 
consultation with the management 
committee and under the supervision of 
the Board of Directors, also redefines the 
role, duties and responsibilities of the 
Chief Executive Officer of the Company 
by integrating the dynamic requirements 
of the business as a going concern and 
future expansionary prospects within 
the realm of good corporate governance 
at all times.  It is also the responsibility 
of the Nomination Committee to assess 
the effectiveness of the processes and 
procedures of the Board of Directors in 
the election or replacement of directors.

The Nomination Committee considers, 
among others, the following guidelines 
in the determination of the number of 
directorships which a director may hold 
in accordance with the policy on holding 
multiple board seats: (a) the nature of 
the business of the corporations in which 
he/she is a director; (b) the age of the 
director; (c) the number of directorships/
active memberships and officerships in 
other corporations or organizations;  and 
(d) possible conflict of interest.  And in 
any case, the directors are required to 
ensure that their capacity to serve with 
diligence is not compromised.

In 2013, the Nomination Committee held four (4) meetings on 
February 19, March 18, May 6 and November 4, with the attendance 
of the members as follows:

Member’s Name February 19 
Meeting

March 18 
Meeting

May 6 
Meeting

November 4 
Meeting

Reynaldo G. David ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢

Estelito P. Mendoza ¢ ¢ ¢ £

Virgilio S. Jacinto*  N/A  N/A  N/A ¢

Legend:  ¢ Present      £Absent   
* Appointed as member on May 21, 2013

The Nomination Committee is chaired by 
Mr. Reynaldo G. David, an independent 
director of the Company, with Atty. 
Estelito P. Mendoza and Atty. Virgilio S. 
Jacinto as members. Atty. Jacinto acted 
as advisor to the Nomination Committee 
until his election as a member of the 
committee on May 21, 2013.

Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee is 
composed of five (5) members of the 
Board of Directors, one of whom is an 
independent director. The Chairman 
and the President of the Company are 
included as members but without 
voting rights. The Chairman of the Board 
of Directors is the Chairman of the 
Compensation Committee. 

Under the CG Manual, the Compensation 
Committee is responsible for considering 
and approving salary structures for 
individuals in the positions of Vice 
President (or its equivalent) and above, 
promotions to positions of Division Head 
and the salary increases to be granted 
concurrently with such promotions, 
and other compensation policy matters 
such as the adoption, modification and 
interpretation of corporate benefit plans. 
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Members of the Compensation 
Committee are prohibited by the 
CG Manual from participating in 
decisions with respect to his/her own 
remuneration, unless the same shall be 
applied to all the directors.  

The Company has formal and transparent 
procedures for fixing the remuneration 
levels of individual directors and of 
officers. In setting salary structures and 
other remuneration for officers and 
directors, the Compensation Committee 
ensures that salaries and other 
remuneration are set at a level adequate 
to attract and retain directors and officers 
with the qualifications and experience 
needed to manage the Company 
successfully.

The Compensation Committee also 
ensures that the Company’s annual 
reports, information and proxy 
statements, and such similar documents 
disclose the fixed and variable 
compensation received by its directors 
and top officers for the preceding fiscal 
year in accordance with the requirements 
of the law.

The Compensation Committee has 
developed a form on full Business Interest 
Disclosure as part of the pre-employment 
requirements for all incoming officers, 
which among others, compel all officers 
to declare under the penalty of perjury 
all their existing business interest or 
shareholdings that may directly or 
indirectly conflict in their performance of 
duties once hired.

The Compensation Committee is chaired 
by Mr. Ramon S. Ang (non-voting) with Mr. 
Lubin B. Nepomuceno (non-voting), Mr. 
Roberto V. Ongpin, Mr. Reynaldo G. David 
and Ms. Aurora T. Calderon as members. 
Mr. Ferdinand K. Constantino acts as the 
advisor to the Compensation Committee.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is composed of five (5) members of the 
Board of Directors, two (2) of whom are independent directors.  
All the members of the Audit Committee are required to have 
adequate accounting and finance backgrounds and at least one 
member with audit experience, in addition to the qualifications 
of a director. The Chairman of the Audit Committee is further 
required by the CG Manual and the Audit Committee Charter to 
be an independent director. 

The Audit Committee is governed by 
the Audit Committee Charter, revisions 
to which to make it compliant with SEC 
Commission Memorandum Circular No. 
4, Series of 2012 were approved by the 
Board of Directors on November 12, 2012.

Among the other functions set out in the 
CG Manual and the Audit Committee 
Charter, the Audit Committee performs 
oversight functions over the Company’s 
internal and external auditors to 
ensure that they act independently 
from each other or from interference 
of outside parties, and that they are 
given unrestricted access to all records, 
properties and personnel necessary in 
the discharge of their respective audit 
functions.

The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. 
Reynaldo G. David, an independent 
director of the Company, and its members 
are former Chief Justice Artemio V. 
Panganiban (another independent 
director of the Company), Atty. Estelito P. 
Mendoza, Mr. Lubin B. Nepomuceno, and 
Ms. Aurora T. Calderon.  Mr. Ferdinand 
K. Constantino was appointed on May 
21, 2013 as advisor to the committee 
following his resignation as a member on 
February 19, 2013.  
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In 2013, the Audit Committee held four (4) meetings on March 
18, May 6, August 6 and November 4.   In all the meetings with 
attendance of the members as follows:

of Directors and the Management of 
the Company including having a clear 
understanding of where the role of the 
Board of Directors ends and where that 
of Management begins, the participation 
of the Board of Directors and the 
board committees in major business 
policies or decisions, the continuous 
interaction with Management for an 
understanding of the businesses better, 
and the consideration of the correlation 
between executive pay and Company 
performance; (iii) effectiveness of board 
process and meetings through the 
adequacy of the frequency, duration 
and scheduling of board and committee 
meetings, the ability of the Board of 
Directors to balance and allocate its 
time effectively in discussing issues 
related to the Company’s strategy and 
competitiveness, the attendance at 
board and committee meetings and 
the conduct of meetings in a manner 
that ensures open communication, 
meaningful participation, and timely 
resolution of issues, the wide and diverse 
range of expertise and occupational and 
personal backgrounds of the directors, 
and the institutionalization of a formal 
review process for monitoring the 
effectiveness of the Board of Directors 
and the individual directors; and (iv) 
individual performance of the directors 
including a director’s understanding  of 
the  mission, values and strategies of the 
Company, his/her duties as a director and 
the Company’s articles of incorporation, 
by-laws and governing policies and 
applicable law, rules and regulations, 
the attendance at meetings and the 
conscious effort to avoid entering into 
situations where a director may be placed 
in a conflict of interest with that of the 
Company.
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Member’s Name March 18 
Meeting

May 6 
Meeting

August 6 
Meeting

November 4 
Meeting

Reynaldo G. David ¢ ¢ £ ¢

Estelito P. Mendoza ¢ ¢ ¢ £

Artemio V. Panganiban ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢

Lubin B. Nepomuceno* N/A N/A ¢ ¢

Aurora T. Calderon ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢

Legend:  ¢ Present      £Absent   
* Appointed as member on May 21, 2013

Board Performance

Assessment of Board 
Performance

In August 2013, the Board of Directors 
adopted a new format for the annual self-
assessment by each director.  

The self-assessment forms cover the 
evaluation of the (i) fulfillment of the 
key responsibilities of the Board of 
Directors including the consideration  of 
the interests of minority shareholders 
and stakeholders and their equitable 
treatment in its decision-making 
processes, the pursuit of good corporate 
governance, the establishment of 
a clear strategic direction for the 
Company designed to maximize long-
term shareholder value, the review 
and approval of financial statements 
and budgets, and the appointment 
of directors who can add value and 
contribute independent judgment to 
the formulation of sound policies and 
strategies of the Company and officers 
who are competent and highly motivated; 
(ii) relationship between the Board 
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External Audit

In 2010, Manabat Sanagustin Co. 
& CPAs/KPMG (“KPMG”), upon the 
recommendation of the Board of 
Directors, was appointed by the 
stockholders of the Company as the 
external auditor of the Company for 
fiscal years 2010, 2011 and 2012, subject 
to yearly performance appraisal and 
applicable rules on rotation of external 
auditor partners set by the SEC.  And 
upon further recommendation by the 
Board of Directors, KPMG was re-
appointed by the stockholders at the 
annual stockholders’ meeting held on 
May 21, 2013 as the external auditor of 
the Company for fiscal year 2013.  

The CG Manual requires the external 
auditor to observe and enable an 
environment of good corporate 
governance as reflected in the financial 
records and reports of the Company, 
undertake an independent audit, 
and provide objective assurance on 
the manner by which the financial 
statements are prepared and presented 
to the shareholders.  Duly authorized 
representatives of KPMG are expected to 
attend the annual stockholders’ meetings 
to respond to appropriate questions 
concerning the financial statements 
of the Company. KPMG auditors are 
also given the opportunity to make a 
representation or statement in case they 
decide to do so. Just as in the previous 
years, representatives of KPMG attended 
the annual stockholders’ meeting held on 
May 21, 2013.

Internal Audit

The Company has in place an 
independent internal audit function 
performed by the Internal Audit 
Department (“IAD”), which provides 

the senior management, the Audit 
Committee and the Board of Directors 
reasonable assurance that the Company’s 
key organizational and procedural 
controls are effective, appropriate and 
being complied with.  

The IAD is guided by the International 
Standards on Professional Practice 
of Internal Auditing.  It reports 
functionally to the Audit Committee and 
administratively to the Chief Finance 
Officer. The CG Manual requires the 
head of the IAD to submit to the Audit 
Committee and the Management an 
annual report on the IAD’s activities, 
responsibilities and performance relative 
to the audit plans and strategies as 
approved by the Audit Committee, 
include significant risk exposure, control 
issues and such other matters as may 
be needed or requested by the Board of 
Directors and Management.

Audit

Disclosure System

The CG Manual recognizes that the essence of corporate governance is transparency 
and it expressly states the commitment of the Company to fully and timely disclose 
material information concerning the Company’s operations that can potentially affect 
share price, including earnings results, acquisition or disposal of major assets, changes 
in the Board of Directors, significant related party transactions (excluding the purchase 
of crude oil in the normal course of business), shareholdings of directors and changes 
in ownership exceeding 5% of the corporation’s outstanding share capital.  The CG 
Manual further requires the disclosure of other information such as remuneration of 
all directors and senior management, corporate strategy and any off balance sheet 
transactions pursuant to the requirements of the law. 

The CG Manual further mandates the Company to adhere to transparent governance, 
commit at all times to fully disclose material information dealings, and cause the filing 
of all the required information for the interest of the stakeholders.

All information disclosed by the Company is released through the approved stock 
exchange procedure for company announcements and the Company’s annual report.  
The Company’s website is also updated as soon as disclosures are approved by the PSE.   
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Stakeholder Relations

The Company replies to information 
requests and email and telephone queries 
and keeps the public informed through 
the Company’s timely PSE and SEC 
disclosures, its regular quarterly briefings 
and investor briefings and conferences, 
and the Company’s website. 

The Company’s disclosures and filings 
with the SEC and PSE (including its 
annual reports, SEC form 17-A and Annual 
Corporate Governance Report), its media 
releases, and other salient information on 
the Company, including its governance, 
business, operations, performance, 
corporate social responsibility projects 
and sustainability efforts are found in the 
Company website www.petron.com.

Code of Conduct and Ethical Business Policy;  
Whistle-blowing Policy; Policy on Securities Dealing

The Company’s Code of Conduct and Ethical Business Policy sets 
the standards for ethical and business conduct of the directors, 

officers and employees and expresses the commitment of the 
Company to conduct its business fairly, honestly, impartially 

and in good faith, and in an uncompromising ethical and proper 
manner.  The Code of Conduct and Ethical Business Policy 

expressly provides a proscription against engaging in any activity 
in conflict with the interest of the Company and it requires a full 
disclosure of any interest in the Company.  The Code of Conduct 

and Ethical Business Policy also specifically prohibits bribery and 
any solicitation, receipt, offer or making of any illegal payments, 

favors, donations or comparable gifts which are intended to 
obtain business or uncompetitive favors. 

The Code of Conduct and Ethical Business 
Policy requires anyone having information 
or knowledge of any prohibited act to 
promptly report such matter to the 
Department Head, any Vice President, 
the Human Resources Management 
Department, the IAD or the General 
Counsel. 

For the past years, the Company 
observed the San Miguel Corporation 
and Subsidiaries Whistle-blowing Policy 
for itself and its subsidiaries.  On May 
6, 2013, the Company, in its pursuit of 
further ensuring that its business is 
conducted in the highest standards of 
fairness, transparency, accountability and 
ethics as embodied in its Code of Conduct 
and Ethical Business Policy, adopted the 
Petron Corporation and Subsidiaries 
Whistle-blowing Policy.  The Petron 
Corporation and Subsidiaries Whistle-
blowing Policy provides for the procedures 
for the communication and investigation 
of concerns relating to accounting, 
internal accounting controls, auditing 
and financial reporting matters of the 
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Petron 
Group”). The policy expressly provides 
the commitment of the Company that it 
shall not tolerate retaliation in any form 
against a director, officer, employee or 
any the other interested party who, in 
good faith, raises a concern or reports a 
possible violation of the policy.  
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For the past years, the Company also observed the San Miguel 
Corporation Policy on Dealings in Securities for itself and its 
subsidiaries.  On May 6, 2013, the Company likewise adopted 
the Petron Corporation Policy on Dealings in Securities.  Under 
this policy, the directors, officers and employees of the Company 
are obliged to exercise extreme caution when dealing in the 
Company’s securities and ensure that such dealings comply with 
this policy and the requirements under the Securities Regulation 
Code (“SRC”).  The policy sets out the conditions and rules under 
which the directors, officers and employees of the Company 
should deal in securities of the Company.

Stakeholder

 Relations

The OGCCS, headed by Atty. Cruz, the 
Compliance Officer of the Company, 
periodically releases memoranda to the 
concerned persons in relation to the 
corporate governance policies of the 
Company and any update to corporate 
governance practices. 

In 2013, the OGCCS released several 
memoranda to advise the employees, 
officers and directors of the adoption of 
the Petron Corporation and Subsidiaries 
Whistle-blowing Policy and Petron 
Corporation Policy on Dealings in 
Securities and explained their respective 
obligations under such policies.  The 
OGCCS also released memoranda on 
the filing obligations of the officers and 
directors in respect of their shareholdings 
in the Company any changes to such 
shareholdings to ensure not only the 
compliance by such officers and directors 
with the requirements of the SRC but also 
by the Company as well.
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Significant improvement 
in profit

Full year 2013 consolidated revenues 
reached an all-time high of   463.64 
billion, 9% higher than previous year’s 
level of P424.80 billion. This was 
generated from total sales volume of 81.5 
million barrels (MMB), up by 7.2 MMB 
from 2012 due to the full consolidation of 
Petron Malaysia (PM). Meanwhile, cost of 
goods sold went up at a lower rate by 8% 
from last year’s P406.80 billion to 
P440.48 billion this year. 

Selling & Administrative Expenses (OPEX) 
totaled P11.48 billion in 2013,

1.34 billion more than the  P10.14 billion 
expenditures in the preceding year also 
brought about by the full consolidation 
of PM’s expenses resulting in higher 
OPEX of PM by P1.04 billion.  Similarly, 
expenditures for Philippine operations 
rose by 4% or P0.30 billion mainly due 
to higher rental expense, materials and 
supplies, and employee costs partially 
offset by lower advertising expense and 
the absence of one-off items in 2013.

On the other hand, Net Financing Costs 
& Other Charges dropped to P4.74 billion 
from   P5.62 billion in 2012 largely due to 
higher capitalized interest of the on-going 
Refinery Master Plan-2 Project coupled 
with higher interest income. These were 
partly negated by higher bank charges 
and unrealized translation losses on 
US-dollar denominated transactions in 
2013 as opposed to the gains recognized 

Financial Highlights
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in the previous year as the Philippine Peso 
gradually depreciated this year versus the 
US dollar.

With the remarkable upsurge in income 
before income tax, income tax expense 
increased to P1.85 billion this year from 

0.46 billion last year.

Petron closed the year with a consolidated 
net income of 5.09 billion, almost three 
times the 1.78 billion restated profit a year 
before brought about by better margins. 

In Million Pesos, Except Per Share and Sales Volume Data	 2013	 2012
Net Revenues	 463,638	 424,795
Net Income	 5,092	 1,780
EBITDA	 17,217	 13,908
Property, Plant and Equipment	 141,647	 104,111
Total Assets	 357,458	 280,333
Total Equity	 111,888	 76,903
Net Debt	 115,860	 128,783
Earnings per Share	 0.28	 0.08
Sales Volume (in MB)	 81,545	 74,277
Return on Sales	 1.1%	 0.4%
Return on Assets	 1.6%	 0.8%
Return on Equity	 5.4%	 2.6% 

Net Revenues

0.28

0.08

0.82

1- 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

2011

2012

2013 Net Income in Billions

EPS (PhP/Share)

With the improved bottom line, basic 
earnings per share rose more than three-
fold from 0.08 to 0.28.

Net Revenues 
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Healthy financial position

Petron’s balance sheet and cash flows 
remain strong in 2013.

Petron’s consolidated assets as of 
December 31, 2013 stood at 357.46 
billion, 28% or 77.13 billion higher 
than the 280.33 billion level at 
end of December 2012 on account 
largely of the increases in property, 
plant and equipment and cash and 
cash equivalents. Property, plant and 
equipment surged by 36% from 104.11 
billion to 141.65 billion attributed to 
the company’s major capital projects 
such as Refinery Master Plan (RMP)-2 
and network expansion, as well as PM’s 
rebranding of service stations. Cash and 
cash equivalents rose by 87% or

In Million Pesos	 2013	 2012
Beginning Cash Balance	 26,965	 23,823
Operating Cash Flow	 33,752	 1,854
Investing Cash Flow	 (43,329)	 (63,681)
Financing Cash Flow	 32,539	 65,407
Effects of Exchange Rate Changes	 471	 (438)
Ending Cash Balance	 50,398	 26,965

Better cash flows to finance working capital 
requirements and capital projects

23.43 billion to 50.40 billion essentially 
sourced from internally generated funds 
and proceeds from loans. 

Total liabilities increased by 21% or 
42.14 billion from 203.43 billion to 
245.57 billion   traced to trade payables 

to crude suppliers and contractors 
of on-going capital projects. The 
company also availed of additional 
long-term debt to finance various 
capital projects. Total equity grew by 

34.99 billion owing to the issuance 
of the undated subordinated capital 
securities and net income for the year 
partly reduced by dividends paid to 
common and preferred shareholders, 
and distributions paid to undated 
subordinated capital securities.

Total Assets
In Billions

400
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250
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357.46

280.33

179.12

2011 2012 2013

The company started the year with a cash balance of 26.97 billion. Operating activities 
provided cash inflows of 33.75 billion while cash outflows used to finance capital 
projects reached 43.3 billion. Funding of these projects was primarily sourced from the 
issuance of undated subordinated capital securities and from bank loans.

Petron ended 2013 with an ample cash balance of 50.40 billion.

Higher economic value 
distributed

Following the Global Reporting Initiative 
format, Petron derived its total Economic 
Value Generated and total Economic 
Value Distributed. The company’s total 
Economic Value Generated in 2013, 
comprised of its core and non-core 
revenues, amounted to 466.1 billion, 
9.2% higher than in 2012. Meanwhile, 
its total Economic Value Distributed, 
which comprised of operating costs, 
payments to capital providers and 
the government, and community 
investments, reached 467.5 billion, 8.6% 
higher than the previous year. Due to 
continued improvement in its operating 
environment and efficiency, Petron’s 
payments to suppliers, contractors, 
service providers and others accounted 
for 92.7% of total Economic Value 
Distributed in 2013.  This enabled the 
Company to allocate greater portions 
of the remaining Economic Value 
Distributed to the government, capital 
providers, salaries, wages and others. 
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Financial Statements

Statement of Management’s Responsibility for Financial Statements
Report of Independent Auditors
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
Consolidated Statements of Income
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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2012 2011 

Note 2013 
As restated 

(Note 3)
As restated 

(Note 3)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING 
ACTIVITIES 

Proceeds from availment of loans P349,212 P335,351 P134,354 
Payments of: 

Loans (345,180) (283,459) (131,148)
Cash dividends and distributions 21 (4,098) (2,436) (1,886)

Proceeds from issuance of undated 
subordinated capital securities 30,546 -     -     

Proceeds from issuance of a subsidiary’s 
preferred share to non-controlling 
interests -     14,216 -     

Increase in other noncurrent liabilities 2,059 1,735 338 
Net cash flows provided by financing 

activities 32,539 65,407 1,658 

EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATE 
CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS 471 (438) 28 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23,433 3,142 (20,161)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 
BEGINNING OF YEAR 26,965 23,823 43,984 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 
END OF YEAR 6 P50,398 P26,965 P23,823 

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Parent Company and its 
subsidiaries.  These subsidiaries are: 

Name of Subsidiary 
Percentage 

of Ownership 
Country of 

Incorporation 
2013 2012  

Overseas Ventures Insurance Corporation (Ovincor) 100.00 100.00 Bermuda 
Petrogen Insurance Corporation (Petrogen) 100.00 100.00 Philippines 
Petron Freeport Corporation (PFC) 100.00 100.00 Philippines 
Petron Singapore Trading Pte., Ltd. (PSTPL) 100.00 100.00 Singapore 
Petron Marketing Corporation (PMC) 100.00 100.00 Philippines
New Ventures Realty Corporation (NVRC) and 

Subsidiaries 40.00 40.00 Philippines 
Limay Energen Corporation (LEC) 100.00 100.00 Philippines

Petron Global Limited (PGL) 100.00(a) 100.00(a) 
British Virgin 

Islands
Petron Finance (Labuan) Limited 100.00 100.00 Malaysia
Petron Oil and Gas Mauritius Ltd. and 

Subsidiaries (Mauritius) 100.00 100.00 Mauritius 
Petrochemical Asia (HK) Limited (PAHL) and 

Subsidiaries 45.85 45.85(b) Hong Kong 
(a) Ownership represents 100% of PGL’s common shares. 
(b) In 2012, investment in PAHL was accounted for as an associate (Notes 11 and 14f). 

Petrogen and Ovincor are both engaged in the business of non-life insurance and  
re-insurance. 

The primary purpose of PFC and PMC is to, among others, sell on wholesale or retail and 
operate service stations, retails outlets, restaurants, convenience stores and the like. 

On May 13, 2010, the Parent Company incorporated PSTPL in Singapore.  PSTPL has an 
initial capitalization of Singapore Dollar 1 million and handles crude, ethanol, catalysts 
and additives procurement, crude vessel chartering and commodity risk management.  
PSTPL started commercial operations on July 19, 2010.

NVRC’s primary purpose is to acquire real estate and derive income from its sale or 
lease.  NVRC is considered as a subsidiary of Petron despite owning only 40% as Petron 
has the power, in practice, to govern the financial and operating policies of NVRC, to 
appoint or remove the majority of the members of the BOD of NVRC and to cast 
majority votes at meetings of the BOD of NVRC.  Petron controls NVRC since it is 
exposed, and has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with NVRC and has the 
ability to affect those returns through its power over NVRC. 

The primary purpose of LEC is to build, operate, maintain, sell and lease power 
generation plants, facilities, equipment and other related assets and generally engage in 
the business of power generation and sale of electricity generated by its facilities. 

On February 24, 2012, Petron acquired PGL, a company incorporated in the British 
Virgin Islands.  PGL has issued an aggregate of 49,622,176 common shares with a par 
value of US$1.00 per share to Petron and 150,000,000 cumulative, non-voting, non-
participating and non-convertible preferred shares series A and 200,000,000 cumulative, 
non-voting, non-participating and non-convertible preferred shares series B at an issue 
price equal to the par value of each share of US$1.00 to a third party investor (Note 14). 
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The recoverable amount of goodwill has been determined based on value in use using 
discounted cash flows (DCF).  Assumptions used in the DCF include 3% terminal growth 
rate and 8% discount rate (Note 14). 

No impairment losses were recognized in 2013 and 2012. 

Management believes that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on 
which the recoverable amount is based would not cause its carrying amount to exceed its 
recoverable amount.   

The calculations of value in use are most sensitive to the projected sales volume, selling 
price and improvement in the gross profit margin, and discount rate. 

Acquisition Accounting.  The Group accounts for acquired businesses using the 
acquisition method of accounting which requires that the assets acquired and liabilities 
assumed are recognized at the date of acquisition based on their respective fair values. 

The application of the acquisition method requires certain estimates and assumptions 
especially concerning the determination of the fair values of acquired property, plant and 
equipment at the date of the acquisition.  Moreover, the useful lives of the acquired 
property, plant and equipment have to be determined. Accordingly, for significant 
acquisitions, the Group obtains assistance from valuation specialists.  The valuations are 
based on information available at the acquisition date. 

The Group has completed the purchase price allocation exercise on acquisitions made in 
2012 (Note 14).  Total combined carrying amounts of goodwill arising from business 
combinations amounted to P9,386 and P9,032 as at December 31, 2013 and 2012, 
respectively (Note 14). 

Realizability of Deferred Tax Assets.  The Group reviews its deferred tax assets at each 
reporting date and reduces the carrying amount to the extent that it is no longer probable 
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets 
to be utilized. The Group’s assessment on the recognition of deferred tax assets on 
deductible temporary differences and carry forward benefits of MCIT and NOLCO is 
based on the projected taxable income in the following periods. 

Deferred tax assets amounted to P162 and P78 as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, 
respectively (Note 27). 

Impairment of Other Non-financial Assets.  PFRS requires that an impairment review be 
performed on investments in associates, property, plant and equipment, intangible assets 
and investment property when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying value may not be recoverable. Determining the recoverable amount of assets 
requires the estimation of cash flows expected to be generated from the continued use 
and ultimate disposition of such assets. While it is believed that the assumptions used in 
the estimation of recoverable amounts are appropriate and reasonable, significant 
changes in these assumptions may materially affect the assessment of recoverable 
amounts and any resulting impairment loss could have a material adverse impact on 
financial performance. 

There were no impairment losses on other non-financial assets recognized in 2013, 2012 
and 2011.   
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The following summarizes the final recognized amounts of assets acquired and 
liabilities assumed as of acquisition date: 

(As restated)
Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents  P5,633
Trade and other receivables - net  12,811
Inventories 13,160
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 314
Property, plant and equipment - net  17,199
Deferred tax assets 28
Other noncurrent assets - net 6,273
Liabilities 
Short-term loans (4,195)
Liabilities for crude oil and petroleum product importation (16,360)
Trade and other payables (1,934)
Income tax payable (64)
Long-term debt including current portion (10,123)
Deferred tax liabilities (1,164)
Other noncurrent liabilities   (700)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value P20,878

Goodwill was recognized based on the final amounts of net assets acquired as 
follows: 

Provisionary 
Amounts 

Final Amounts
(As Restated)

Total cash consideration transferred P25,928 P24,790 
Non-controlling interest measured at  

proportionate interest in identifiable net assets 3,584 5,445 
Total identifiable net assets at fair value (18,873) (20,878)
Goodwill P10,639 P9,357 

POGI also served the notice of mandatory general offer (MGO) to acquire the 
remaining 94,500,000 shares representing 35% of the total voting shares of EMB for 
RM3.59 per share from the public.  The Unconditional Mandatory Take-Over Offer 
was closed on May 14, 2012.  As a result of the MGO, POGI was able to acquire an 
additional 22,679,063 shares from the public and increased its interest in EMB to 
73.4%.  

Consequently, the Group recognized a decrease in non-controlling interests of 
P1,253 and an increase in other reserves of P165.

On April 23, 2012, the Companies Commission of Malaysia (CCM) approved the 
change of name of EMMSB to Petron Fuel International Sdn Bhd and of EMBSB to 
Petron Oil (M) Sdn Bhd. Thereafter, on July 11, 2012, the CCM approved the change 
of name of EMB to Petron Malaysia Refining & Marketing Bhd.  
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Global Reporting Initiative Index

GRI INDICATOR AND DESCRIPTION REFERENCE / PAGE 
NUMBER

1.0 Strategy and Analysis

1.1 Statement from the most senior decision maker(s) of the organization 6-11

1.2 Description of key impacts, risks and opportunities 3, SEC Form 17-A 

2.0 Organizational Profile Report Parameters

2.1 Name of the organization 4

2.2 Primary brands, products, and/or services 4, 9, 14,188

2.3 Operational structure and major divisions 5

2.4 Location of the company headquarters 5

2.5 Countries of operations 4, 9

2.6 Nature of ownership and legal form 5

2.7 Markets served 4,187

2.8 Scale of the reporting organization 13, 15-16

2.9 Significant changes during the reporting period 3

2.10 Awards and recognitions received during the reporting period 15

3.0 Report Parameters

3.1 Reporting period 3

3.2 Date of most recent previous report 3

3.3 Reporting cycle 3

3.4 Contact point for questions about the report and its contents inside back cover

3.5 Process for defining report content 3

3.6 Boundary of the report 3

3.7 Limitations on the scope or boundary of the report 3

3.8 Basis for reporting on joint ventures, subsidiaries, and other related entities 3

3.9 Assessment methods for data and bases for estimates in data compilation 3

3.10 Explanation of the effect of any re-statements of  information provided in 
previous reports

3

3.11 Significant changes from previous reporting period 3

3.12 GRI Index Page 182

3.13 Policy and current practice dealing with external verification 3

4.0 Governance, Commitments, and Engagement

4.1 Governance structure of the organization 53

4.2 Indicate whether the Chair of the highest governance body is also an 
Executive Officer

54

4.3 Number of Independent and non-executive members 54

4.4 Mechanisms for shareholders and employees to provide recommendations 50-51,52

4.5 Association between the compensation of the members of top management, high 
directors and the performance of the organization including environmental and 
social performance

58

4.6 Procedures for avoiding conflict of interest in top management 53, 58, 60-61

4.7 Procedures for determining qualifications and experience of top management for 
guiding the organization in economic, environmental, and social aspects

58

4.8 Statement concerning missions and values implemented internally, codes of conduct 
and  standards for economic, environmental, and social performance, and the status 
of implementation

1, 58, 60-61

4.9 Procedures for top management to supervise the identification and management 
of the organization’s economic, environmental, and social performance, including 
assessment of risks and  opportunities, as well as adherence to international level 
codes of conduct and standards

58
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4.9 Procedures for top management to supervise the identification and management 
of the organization’s economic, environmental, and social performance, including 
assessment of risks and  opportunities, as well as adherence to international level 
codes of conduct and standards

58

4.10 Process to assess the performance of top management, especially with respect to 
economic, environmental, and social performance

58

4.11 Explanation of how the precautionary principle is addressed by the organization 3

4.12 Externally developed economic, environmental, and social standards adopted or any 
other related initiatives

37

4.13 Listing of groups of interest included by the  organization 17

4.14 List of stakeholders groups 5

4.15 Basis for identification and selection of stakeholders groups 5

4.16 Approaches used to include interest groups, including  frequency of participation 
according to the type of group of interest

5, 50-51, 60

4.17 Key concerns and topics raised by stakeholders and how the organizations has 
responded to  these concerns

5

GRI INDICATOR AND DESCRIPTION REFERENCE / PAGE 
NUMBER

Economic Performance Indicators

Discussion of Management Approaches 5, 13

EC 1 Economic value generated and distributed, including revenues, operating costs, 
employee compensation, donations and other community investments, retained 
earnings, and payments to capital providers and governments

8, 11, 62-63

EC 3 Coverage of the organization’s defined benefit plan obligations Note 30 of the Notes 
to the Consolidated 

Financial Statements

EC 5 Range of ratios of standard entry level wage compared to local minimum wage at 
significant locations of operation

36

EC 8 Development and impact of infrastructure investments and services provided 
primarily for public benefit through commercial, in-kind, or pro bono engagement

11, 63

Environmental Performance Indicators

Discussion of Management Approaches 27

EN 1 Materials used by weight or volume 22

EN 3 Direct energy consumption by primary energy source 22

EN 4 Indirect energy consumption by primary source 24

EN 5 Energy saved due to conservation and efficiency improvements 22

EN 13 Habitats protected or restored 31, 37

EN 16 Total direct and indirect greenhouse gas emissions by weight 26

EN 18 Initiatives to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and reductions achieved 26

EN 20 NOx, SOx, and other significant air emissions by type and weight 26

EN 26 Initiatives to mitigate environmental impacts of products and services, and extent of 
impact mitigation

10, 22
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GRI INDICATOR AND DESCRIPTION REFERENCE / PAGE 
NUMBER

Social Performance Indicators

Discussion of Management Approaches 16, 30, 36-37

LA 1 Total workforce by employment type, employment contract, and region 35

LA 2 Total number and rate of employee turnover by age group, gender, and region 36

LA 4 Percentage of employees covered by collective bargaining agreements 34

LA 6 Percentage of total workforce represented in formal joint management-worker 
health and safety committees that help monitor and advise on occupational health 
and safety programs

34

LA 7 Tota Rates of injury, occupational diseases, lost days, and absenteeism, and number 
of work-related fatalities by region. l number and rate of employee turnover by age 
group, gender, and region

10, 31

LA 8 Education, training, counseling, prevention, and risk-control programs in place to 
assist workforce members, their families, or community members regarding
serious diseases

34

LA 9 Health and safety topics covered in formal agreements with trade unions 34

LA 10 Average hours of training per year per employee by employee category 34

LA 11 Programs for skills management and lifelong learning that support the continued 
employability of employees and assist them in managing career endings

34

LA 12 Percentage of employees receiving regular performance and career 
development reviews

36

LA 13 Composition of governance bodies and breakdown of employees per category 
according to gender, age group, minority group membership, and other 
indicators of diversity

33

LA 14 Ratio of basic salary of men to women by employee category 36

HR 4 Total number of incidents of discrimination and actions taken 34-36

HR 5 Operations identified in which the right to exercise freedom of association and 
collective bargaining may be at significant risk, and actions taken to support
these rights

34

HR 6 Operations identified as having significant risk for incidents of child labor, and 
measures taken to contribute to the elimination of child labor

34

HR 7 Operations identified as having significant risk for incidents of forced or compulsory 
labor, and measures to contribute to the elimination of forced or compulsory labor

34

SO 1 Nature, scope, and effectiveness of any programs and practices that asses and 
manage the impacts of operations on communities, including entering, operating, 
and exiting

10, 22, 30, 38-39, 
42-43

SO 2 Percentage and total number of business units analyzed for risks related 
to corruption

34

SO 3 Percentage of employees trained in organization’s anti-corruption policies
and procedures

34, 36

SO 4 Actions taken in response to incidents of corruption 34

SO 5 Public policy positions and participation in public policy development and lobbying 5

SO 7 Total number of legal actions for anti-competitive behavior, anti-trust, and monopoly 
practices and their outcomes

36

SO 8 Monetary value of significant fines and total number of non-monetary sanctions for 
non-compliance with laws and regulations

36

PR 1 Life cycle stages in which health and safety impacts of products and services are 
assessed for improvement, and percentage of significant products and services 
categories subject to such procedures

16

Global Reporting Initiative Index

Going The Extra Mile
GRI Index

Petron Corporation
2013 Annual Report
Going The Extra Mile
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PR 2 Total number of incidents of non-compliance with regulations and voluntary codes 
concerning health and safety impacts of products and services, by type of outcomes

16

PR 3 Type of product and service information required by procedures and percentage of 
significant products and services subject to such information requirements

17

PR 5 Practices related to customer satisfaction, including results of surveys measuring 
customer satisfaction

17

PR 6 Programs for adherence to laws, standards, and voluntary codes related to marketing 
communications, including advertising, promotion, and sponsorship

17

PR 7 Total number of incidents of non-compliance with regulations and voluntary codes 
concerning marketing communications, including advertising, promotion, and 
sponsorship by type of outcomes

16

PR 8 Total number of substantiated complaints regarding breaches of customer privacy 
and losses of customer data

17

PR 9 Monetary value of significant fines for non-compliance with laws and regulations 
concerning the provision and use of products and services

17
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Allied Banking Corporation
Amalgamated Investment Bancorporation
Asia United Bank
Australia and New Zealand Banking  

Group, Ltd.
Ayala Life Assurance
Banco de Oro Unibank, Inc.
Bank of America Merrill Lynch
Bank of Commerce
Bank of the Philippine Islands
Barclays Capital
BDO Capital  and Investment Corp.
BDO Leasing & Finance, Inc. 
BDO Private Bank
BNP Paribas Corporate & Investment 

Banking
BPI Capital Corporation
China Banking Corporation
CIMB Investment Bank Berhad
Citibank, N. A.
Credit Agricole Corporate  

& Investment Bank
Credit Suisse
CTBC Bank Co., Ltd.
DBS Bank Ltd.
Deutsche Bank
Development Bank of the Philippines
East West Bank
Emirates NBD PJSC
Federated Project and Trade Finance  

Core Fund
First Gulf Bank
First Metro Investment Corporation
Goldman Sachs
HSBC Bank Bermuda Limited
ING Bank N. V.
Insular Life Assurance Co.

JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A.
Land Bank of the Philippines
Maybank Group
Mega International Commercial Bank  

Co., Ltd.
Metropolitan Bank and Trust Company
MG Leasing Corporation
Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd.
Multinational Investment Bancorporation
National Commercial Bank
Nomura Singapore Limited
Oversea Chinese Banking  

Corporation Limited
PT Bank Mandiri (Persero) Tbk
Philippine Bank of Communications
Philippine Business Bank 
Philippine Commercial Capital,Inc.
Philippine National Bank
Philippine Veterans Bank
Pioneer Life, Inc.
PNB Life Insurance, Inc.
Public Bank
RCBC Capital Corporation
RHB Bank Berhad
Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation
Robinsons Bank Corporation
SB Capital Investment Corporation
Security Bank Corporation
Societe Generale Corporate  

& Investment Banking
Sony Life
Standard Chartered Bank
Sterling Bank of Asia (A Savings Bank)
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation
Sunlife of Canada (Philippines), Inc.
Sunlife of Canada Prosperity Bond Fund, Inc.
Taiwan Cooperative Bank

List of Banks and Financial Institutions

The Bank of East Asia, Limited
The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd.
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking  

Corporation, Ltd.
The Shanghai Commercial  

and Savings Bank, Ltd.
UBS AG
Union Bank of the Philippines
United Coconut Planters Bank
United Overseas Bank Limited
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Terminals, Depots, and Airport Facilities

LUZON

APARRI
J.P. de Carreon St. Punta 
Aparri, Cagayan

BATANGAS
Bo. Mainaga, Mabini, 
Batangas

LIMAY 
Petron Bataan Refinery, 
Limay, Bataan

NAVOTAS
PFDA CMPD., Navotas, 
Metro Manila

PANDACAN
Jesus St., Pandacan, 
Manila	

PASACAO
Brgy. Camangi, Pasacao, 
Camarines Sur

PALAWAN
Parola,Brgy. Maunlad, 
Puerto Princesa City, 
Palawan

PORO
Poro Pt.,  San Fernando, 
La Union

ROSARIO
Gen. Trias, Rosario, 
Cavite

SAN JOSE
1020 A. Mabini St., 
San Jose, Occidental 
Mindoro

CALAPAN
Roxas St., Brgy. 
Ilaya,Calapan City, 
Oriental Mindoro 

VISAYAS 

AMLAN
Tandayag, Amlan, 
Negros Oriental

BACOLOD
Bo. San Patricio, Bacolod 
City, Negros Occ.

ILOILO
Lapuz, Iloilo City

ISABEL
LIDE, Isabel, Leyte

MACTAN
MEPZ, Lapu-lapu City

MANDAUE
Looc, Mandaue City, 
Cebu

ORMOC
Bo. Linao, Ormoc City, 
Leyte

ROXAS
Arnaldo Blvd., Culasi, 
Roxas City

TACLOBAN
Anibong, Tacloban City

TAGBILARAN
Graham Ave., Tagbilaran, 
Bohol

MINDANAO

DAVAO
Km. 9, Bo. Pampanga, 
Davao City

BAWING
Purok Cabu, Bawing,
General Santos City

ILIGAN
Bo. Tuminobo, Iligan City, 
Lanao del Norte

JIMENEZ
Jimenez, Misamis 
Occidental

NASIPIT
Talisay, Nasipit, Agusan 
del Norte

TAGOLOAN
Tagoloan, Misamis 
Oriental

ZAMBOANGA	
Bgy. Campo Islam, Lower 
Calarian, Zamboanga 
City

AIRPORT 
FACILITIES	 	
		
DAVAO
Davao Airport

ILOILO
Brgy. Airport , 
Mandurriao, Iloilo City

LAOAG
Laoag Airport

GENERAL SANTOS
Brgy. Tambler, 
General Santos City

CAGAYAN
Laguidingan 
International Airport
Laguidingan, 
Misamis Oriental

KALIBO
Kalibo International 
Airport
Kalibo, Aklan

CATICLAN
Godofredo P. Ramos 
Airport
Caticlan, Malay Aklan

MACTAN
Mactan Airport
MCIAA Northeast
Ramp Area, AMA Gate 2,
Lapu-lapu City, Cebu

PUERTO PRINCESSA
L. Oliveros Rd., 
Brgy. Maunlad, 
Puerto Princessa City, 
Palawan

ZAMBOANGA
Zamboanga 
International Airport
Zamboanga City

NAIA
JOCASP Compound, 
NAIA, Pasay City

LPG OPERATIONS

GASUL-PASIG
Bo. Ugong, Pasig, Metro 
Manila

LEGASPI
Lakandula Drive, 
Bgy. Bonot, Legaspi City

GASUL-SAN FERNANDO	
San Fernando, 
Pampanga

CALAMBA 
WAREHOUSE	

CALAMBA 
Calamba, Laguna
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FUELS

Automotive Fuels
Petron Blaze 100 Euro 4 
Petron XCS 
Petron Xtra Advance
Petron Super Xtra Gasoline 
Petron Turbo Diesel
Petron Diesel Max
Petron Xtend Autogas

Industrial Fuels
Petron Fuel Oil
IF-1
LSFO-1
Intermediate Fuels
Special Fuel Oils
Petron Industrial Diesel 
Fuel

Aviation Fuels
Aviation Gasoline
Jet A- I

Household Fuels
Gasul
Fiesta Gas
Gaas

AUTOMOTIVE 
LUBRICATING OILS

Diesel Engine Oils
Rev-X All Terrain
Rev-X Trekker
Rev-X Hauler
Rev-X Pantra
Rev-X HD
Petron 2040
Petron Railroad Extra

Gasoline Engine Oils
Ultron Race
Ultron Rallye
Ultron Touring
Ultron Extra
Petron MO

Motorcycle Oils
Petron Sprint 4T Racer
Petron Sprint 4T Enduro
Petron Sprint 4T Rider
Petron Sprint 4T Extra
Petron Sprint 4T Econo
2T Premium
2T Enviro
2T Autolube
2T Powerburn

Automotive Gear Oils
Petron GX
Petron GEP
Petron GST

Automotive Transmission 
Fluids
Petron ATF Premium
Petron TF 38
Petron TDH 50

INDUSTRIAL 
LUBRICATING OILS

Turbine, Hydraulic and 
Circulating Oils 
Hydrotur AWX
Hydrotur AW
Hydrotur AW (GT) 
Hydrotur EP 46
Hydrotur N 100
Hydrotur R
Hydrotur SX 32
Hydrotur SX 68
Hydrotur T
Hydrotur TEP

Industrial Gear Oils
Hydrotur SX 220
Hypex EP (Oil-Based)
Hypex EP (Asphalt-
Based)
Milrol 5K
Gearfluid
Gearkote
Petrocyl S
Petrocyl

Cutting Oils 
Turnol 40
Petrokut 10
Petrokut 27

Refrigeration Oils 
Zerflo 68
Zerflo P68
Suniso 3GS
Suniso 4GS

Transformer Oil
Voltran 60

Spindle Oils
Spinol 15
Spinol 10E

Slideway Oil
Hydrotur SW 68

Other Industrial 
Lubricating Oils
Petron Airlube
Petrosine 68

MARINE 
LUBRICATING OILS

Crosshead Engine 
Cylinder Oils
Petromar DCL 7050
Petromar DCL 4000 
Series

Trunk Piston Engine Oils
Petromar XC 5540
Petromar XC 5040
Petromar XC 4040
Petromar XC 3000 Series

Petromar XC 2000 Series
Petromar XC 1500 Series
Petromar XC 1000 Series
Petron MS 9250
Petron MS 9370

Crosshead Engine 
System Oil   
Petromar 65

Small Inboard 4-stroke 
Marine Engine Oils
Petromar HD Marine 
Series 
Petron Marine HD Oil

Marine outboard 
2-stroke oil
Petron Regatta

GREASES

Multi-purpose Greases
Petrogrease MP
Molygrease Premium
Petrogrease Premium

Water Resistant Grease 
Petrogrease XX

Extreme Pressure 
Greases
Petrogrease EP
Molygrease EP2
Molygrease EP 1P and 
EP 2P
Petrogrese EP 375

High Temperature 
Greases
Petrogrease HT

Complex Greases
Petron Premium Lithium 
Complex

ASPHALTS

Penetration Asphalt
Petropen

Cutback Asphalt
Petropen CB

Emulsified Asphalt
Petromul SS-1
Petromul CSS -1

Blown Asphalts
Asphaltseal
Asphalt Joint Sealer

Polymer Modified 
Bitumen
Petron Polymer Modified 
Bitumen 

SPECIAL 
PRODUCTS

Process Oils
Process Oils
Stemol
Stemol 300
Petrosine 68
Jute Batching Oil
Aldro Oil 460

Heat Transfer Oil
Petrotherm 32

Cleaning Agent
Greasolve

Flushing Oil
STM

Sealing Lubricant
Dust Stop Oil

Protective Coatings
Petrokote 500
Petrokote 392
Marinekote
Marinekote SS
Autokote
Cablelube
Cablekote

Others 
Petron Farm Trac Oil
Aldro Oil 460
Bull’s Eye Gun Oil

AFTERMARKET 
SPECIALTIES

PetroMate Specialties
PetroMate Oil Saver
PetroMate Oil Improver
PetroMate Gas Saver
PetroMate Diesel Power 
Booster
PetroMate Engine Flush
PetroMate Super 
Coolant
PetroMate Clean N’ 
Shine
PetroMate Penetrating 
Oil
PetroMate Greaseaway
PetroMate Brake and 
Clutch Fluid
PetroMate Carbon 
Buster

AVIATION 
LUBRICANTS

Braycote 622
Nyco Grease GN 22
Hydraunycoil FH 51
Royco 481
Aviation Oil Elite 
20W-50

Product List

Turbo Oil 2389
Turbo Oil 2380
Turbonycoil 35 M
Turbonycoil 600

PERFROMANCE 
ADDITIVES

Combustion Improver
pChem 69F
pChem 200F
pChem 3500
pChem 3500F 

Deposit Control
pChem 140M

Corrosion Inhibitor
pChem 3500MF

Fuel Stabilizer & 
Dispersant
pChem 500FS
pChem 500SX
pChem 1000

Multifunctional 
Additives
pChem 100X
pChem 3500M
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Information 
Assistance
Petron Corporation
SMC Head Office Complex
40 San Miguel Avenue
1550 Mandaluyong City
Telephone No.: (632) 886-3888
Fax No.: (632) 884-0945
Website: www.petron.com
Email Address: contactus@petron.com
www.facebook.com/PetronCorporation
www.twitter.com/Petron_Corp

Institutional
Investors
Petron Corporation welcomes inquiries from 
analysts and institutional investors.
Please write or call: Corporate Affairs 
Department
40 San Miguel Avenue
1550 Mandaluyong City
Telephone No.: (632) 886-3888
Fax No.: (632) 884-0945
Website: www.petron.com
Email Address: 
cvcanillas@petron.com
mlsantos@petron.com

Investor Information

Shareholder Service  
and Assistance
For questions and comments regarding 
dividend payments, change of address, 
account status, loss or damaged stock 
certificates, please get in touch with: 
SMC Stock Transfer Service Corporation

40 San Miguel Avenue
1550 Mandaluyong City
Trunkline: (632) 632-3450 to 52
Fax No.: (632) 632-3535
Email Address: 
smc_stsc@smg.sanmiguel.com.ph
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